
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS 
 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by the Finance Department 
 

Robert J. Nowak, Director of Finance 
Sandra Collins, Assistant Director of Finance 













VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 
 

April 30, 2012 
 

 
Page(s) 

STATISTICAL SECTION (Continued) 
 

Debt Capacity 
 Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type ............................................................................... 161 
 Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding ........................................................... 162 
 Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt .................................................. 163 
 Legal Debt Margin Information ....................................................................................... 164 
 
Demographic and Economic Information 
 Demographic and Economic Statistics ............................................................................ 165 
 Principal Employers ......................................................................................................... 166 
 
Operating Information 
 Full-Time Equivalent Village Government Employees by Function/Program .............. 167 
 Operating Indicators by Function/Program ..................................................................... 168-169 
 Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program ................................................................. 170 
 



INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 



 

 - i - 

 VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS 
 
 PRINCIPAL OFFICERS AND OFFICIALS 
 
 APRIL 30, 2012 

 
 
 

 LEGISLATIVE  
 
 George Van Dusen, Mayor 
 
 Michele L Bromberg, Trustee Michael M. Lorge, Trustee 
 
 Donald P. Perille, Trustee Pramod C. Shah, Trustee 
 
 Edie Sue Sutker, Trustee Randall E. Roberts, Trustee 
 

Marlene Williams, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

 ADMINISTRATION  
 

Albert J. Rigoni, Village Manager 
 

John T. Lockerby, Assistant Village Manager 

 
 J. Patrick Hanley, Corporation Counsel Robert J. Nowak, Director of Finance 
 
 Max L. Slankard Jr., Public Works Director Ralph E. Czerwinski, Fire Chief 
 
 Peter Peyer, Community Development Director Dr. Catherine A. Counard, Director of Health 
 

 Sandra Collins, Assistant Director of Finance Christa C. Ballowe, Personnel Director 
 
 Barry P. Silverberg, Police Chief Maureen M. DiFrancesca, Human Services Director 









http://www.skokie.org/FDMain.cfm
http://www.skokie.org/PDMain.cfm
http://www.skokie.org/PublicWorksMain.cfm










FINANCIAL SECTION 
 







GENERAL PURPOSE EXTERNAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

 

















Centre East
Metropolitan
Exposition, 

Auditorium and Skokie
Governmental  Business-Type  Office Building Public

Activities Activities Total Authority  Library

ASSETS  
Cash and cash equivalents 17,089,641$        6,107,516$          23,197,157$          23,826$                10,447,452$         
Investments 8,482,998            -                      8,482,998              1,208,678             -                        
Receivables (net, where applicable,
  of allowances for uncollectibles)

Property taxes 8,140,672            -                      8,140,672              -                        6,216,740             
Other taxes 11,543,842          35,529                 11,579,371            -                        -                        
Accounts 268,472               2,315,090            2,583,562              53,503                  -                        
Notes 435,000               -                      435,000                 -                        -                        
Accrued interest 12,514                 -                      12,514                   -                        -                        
Other  493,805               -                      493,805                 -                        -                        

Prepaid expenses 544,457               -                      544,457                 23,363                  80,902                  
Inventory 44,357                 175,653               220,010                 -                        -                        
Due from other governments 1,986,034            -                      1,986,034              -                        66,436                  
Due from other funds 67,127                 -                      67,127                   -                        -                        
Unamortized bond issuance costs 366,867               -                      366,867                 -                        88,123                  
Net pension asset 20,457,111          -                      20,457,111            -                        -                        
Capital assets not being depreciated 44,451,003          787,868               45,238,871            1,858,026             1,488,336             
Capital assets being depreciated 
  (net of accumulated depreciation) 123,801,295        22,977,275          146,778,570          11,321,124           18,102,072           

Total assets 238,185,195        32,398,931          270,584,126          14,488,520           36,490,061           

LIABILITIES  
Accounts payable 7,375,654            1,997,955            9,373,609              1,199,006             83,761                  
Accrued payroll 1,122,710            22,961                 1,145,671              -                        128,944                
Deposits 538,921               -                      538,921                 -                        -                        
Due to fiduciary funds 344,048               -                      344,048                 -                        -                        
Due to governmental activities -                      20,606                 20,606                   -                        -                        
Accrued interest payable 983,801               21,904                 1,005,705              23                         155,115                
Unearned revenues 7,926,569            -                      7,926,569              -                        6,117,937             
Claims payable 2,166,430            -                      2,166,430              -                        -                        
Other payables 81,345                 -                      81,345                   -                        -                        
Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year 5,603,196            215,679               5,818,875              -                        1,311,630             
Due in more than one year 53,617,979          1,553,001            55,170,980            -                        9,188,772             

Total liabilities 79,760,653          3,832,106            83,592,759            1,199,029             16,986,159           

NET ASSETS  
Invested in capital assets,
  net of related debt 127,007,975        22,060,945          149,068,920          13,179,150           9,506,180             
Restricted for  

Public safety 693,059               -                      693,059                 -                        -                        
Public works 677,538               -                      677,538                 -                        -                        
Economic development 6,405,213            -                      6,405,213              -                        -                        
Employee retirement 627,602               -                      627,602                 -                        -                        
Debt service 7,332,150            -                      7,332,150              -                        346,628                

Unrestricted 15,681,005          6,505,880            22,186,885            110,341                9,651,094             

TOTAL NET ASSETS 158,424,542$      28,566,825$        186,991,367$        13,289,491$         19,503,902$         

Primary Government Component Units

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

April 30, 2012

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Activities
General government 17,054,841$        7,130,082$       784,457$          319,826$          
Health and welfare 1,679,507            -                    -                    -                    
Public safety 30,785,222          624,057            647,532            -                    
Public works 34,095,545          -                    1,937,551         13,325,974       
Interest 2,499,831            -                    350,660            -                    

Total governmental activities 86,114,946          7,754,139         3,720,200         13,645,800       

Business-Type Activities
Water and sewer 7,538,765            10,141,790       -                    -                    
Parking 245,720               68,295              -                    -                    

Total business-type activities 7,784,485            10,210,085       -                    -                    

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 93,899,431$        17,964,224$     3,720,200$       13,645,800$     

COMPONENT UNITS
Skokie Public Library 12,033,494$        212,000$          84,736$            21,664$            

Centre East Metropolitan Exposition, 
  Auditorium and Office Building Authority 1,964,477$          1,176,440$       250,000$          -$                  

Program Revenues

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

 STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2011
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Centre East
Metropolitan
Exposition, 

Auditorium and Skokie
Governmental Business-Type Office Building Public

Activities Activities Total Authority Library

(8,820,476)$        -$                  (8,820,476)$        -$                        (11,389,793)$          
(1,679,507)          -                    (1,679,507)          -                          -                          

(29,513,633)        -                    (29,513,633)        -                          -                          
(18,832,020)        -                    (18,832,020)        -                          -                          
(2,149,171)          -                    (2,149,171)          -                          (340,515)                 

(60,994,807)        -                    (60,994,807)        -                          (11,730,308)            

-                      2,603,025         2,603,025           -                          -                          
-                      (177,425)           (177,425)             -                          -                          

-                      2,425,600         2,425,600           -                          -                          

(60,994,807)        2,425,600         (58,569,207)        -                          (11,730,308)            

-                      -                    -                      -                          (11,715,094)            

-                      -                    -                      (538,037)                 -                          

General Revenues
Taxes

Property 21,189,803         -                    21,189,803         -                          12,151,350             
Personal property replacement 1,132,759           -                    1,132,759           -                          326,040                  
Home rule sales 11,388,427         -                    11,388,427         -                          -                          
Sales 13,993,679         -                    13,993,679         -                          -                          
Use 945,142              -                    945,142              -                          -                          
Hotel/motel 1,105,978           -                    1,105,978           91,874                    -                          
Real estate transfer tax 685,831              -                    685,831              -                          -                          
Telecommunications 3,578,374           -                    3,578,374           -                          -                          
Utility tax 4,028,528           494,673            4,523,201           -                          -                          
Other tax 1,034,190           -                    1,034,190           -                          -                          

Shared income taxes 4,769,895           -                    4,769,895           -                          -                          
Investment income 49,898                (1,094)               48,804                1,333                      13,538                    
Miscellaneous 246,244              -                    246,244              -                          69,668                    

Transfers in (out) 299,522              (299,522)           -                      -                          -                          

Total 64,448,270         194,057            64,642,327         93,207                    12,560,596             

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 3,453,463           2,619,657         6,073,120           (444,830)                 845,502                  
 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1 154,681,998       25,947,168       180,629,166       13,734,321             18,658,400             

Prior period adjustment 289,081              -                    289,081              -                          -                          

NET ASSETS, MAY 1, RESTATED 154,971,079       25,947,168       180,918,247       13,734,321             18,658,400             
 

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30 158,424,542$     28,566,825$     186,991,367$     13,289,491$           19,503,902$           

Component UnitsPrimary Government
Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Downtown Science and
General TIF Technology TIF

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 4,724,707$         -$                  1,253,495$            
Investments 10,121                6,046,294          -                         
Receivables (net, where applicable,
  of allowances for uncollectibles)

Property taxes 5,029,640           11,386               41,790                   
Other taxes 9,697,678           -                    -                         
Accounts 78,159                19                      -                         
Notes 435,000              -                    -                         
Accrued interest 12,465                -                    4                            
Other receivables 483,600              -                    -                         

Inventory 44,357                -                    -                         
Prepaid items -                      -                    -                         
Due from other funds 79,244                -                    1,346,772              
Due from fiduciary funds 46,521                
Due from other governments 265,635              -                    -                         
Advance to other funds 1,550,000           -                    -                         

TOTAL ASSETS 22,457,127$       6,057,699$        2,642,061$            

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 2,563,726$         4,572$               6,417$                   
Accrued payroll 1,118,380           3,494                 -                         
Deposits 502,556              -                    -                         
Deferred property taxes 4,949,537           -                    -                         
Unearned revenues 2,132,761           -                    -                         
Due to other funds 23,564                1,369,701          910,363                 
Due to fiduciary funds 344,048              -                    -                         
Other payables 61,463                -                    -                         
Advances from other funds -                      -                    -                         

Total liabilities 11,696,035         1,377,767          916,780                 

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable in form

Prepaid items -                      -                    -                         
Advances 1,550,000           -                    -                         
Inventories 44,357                -                    -                         
Notes receivable 435,000              -                    -                         

Restricted
Public safety 497,049              -                    -                         
Foreign fire insurance 196,010              -                    -                         
Economic development -                      4,679,932          1,725,281              
Highways and streets -                      -                    -                         
Employee benefits -                      -                    -                         
Commuter parking lot -                      -                    -                         
Debt service -                      -                    -                         

Unrestricted
Committed

Highways and streets -                      -                    -                         
Public safety -                      -                    -                         
Capital projects -                      -                    -                         

Assigned
Capital projects -                      -                    -                         

Unassigned (deficit) 8,038,676           -                    -                         

Total fund balances (deficit) 10,761,092         4,679,932          1,725,281              

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 22,457,127$       6,057,699$        2,642,061$            

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

April 30, 2012
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Economic Building and West Dempster
Development Equipment TIF Nonmajor Total

25,856$             251,867$           -$                      8,679,450$         14,935,375$        
-                     1,833,775          -                        592,808              8,482,998            

-                     291,029             -                        2,643,933           8,017,778            
-                     1,322,587          -                        474,571              11,494,836          
-                     190,294             -                        -                      268,472               
-                     -                     -                        -                      435,000               
-                     12                      -                        31                       12,512                 
-                     -                     -                        10,205                493,805               
-                     -                     -                        -                      44,357                 
-                     544,457             -                        -                      544,457               

16,310               1,607,218          -                        66,475                3,116,019            
46,521                 

-                     1,536,434          -                        183,965              1,986,034            
2,000,000          -                     -                        -                      3,550,000            

2,042,166$        7,577,673$        -$                      12,651,438$       53,428,164$        

6,398$               4,193,062$        18,195$                513,710$            7,306,080$          
151                    -                     -                        108                     1,122,133            
-                     36,362               -                        3                         538,921               
-                     284,312             -                        2,600,833           7,834,682            
-                     -                     -                        120,834              2,253,595            

585,516             -                     111,340                94,929                3,095,413            
-                     -                     -                        -                      344,048               

19,882               -                     -                        -                      81,345                 
-                     -                     3,550,000             -                      3,550,000            

611,947             4,513,736          3,679,535             3,330,417           26,126,217          

-                     544,457             -                        -                      544,457               
2,000,000          -                     -                        -                      3,550,000            

-                     -                     -                        -                      44,357                 
-                     -                     -                        -                      435,000               

-                     -                     -                        -                      497,049               
-                     -                     -                        -                      196,010               
-                     -                     -                        -                      6,405,213            
-                     -                     -                        560,222              560,222               
-                     -                     -                        627,602              627,602               
-                     -                     -                        117,316              117,316               
-                     -                     -                        7,332,150           7,332,150            

-                     -                     -                        386,018              386,018               
-                     -                     -                        126,563              126,563               
-                     -                     -                        211,181              211,181               

-                     2,519,480          -                        -                      2,519,480            
(569,781)            -                     (3,679,535)            (40,031)               3,749,329            

1,430,219          3,063,937          (3,679,535)            9,321,021           27,301,947          

2,042,166$        7,577,673$        -$                      12,651,438$       53,428,164$        

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 27,301,947$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
  statement of net assets are different because:

Certain revenues that do not meet the Village's revenue recognition
  criteria are not recognized in the governmental funds 2,161,708          

Capital assets used in governmental activities are
  not financial resources and, therefore, are not
  reported in the governmental funds 168,252,298      

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the
  current period and, therefore, are not reported in the
  governmental funds

Bonds payable (55,339,442)       
Unamortized premium on bonds (753,198)            
Unamortized discount on bonds 28,656               
Unamortized loss on refunding of bonds 197,652             

Compensated absences payable are not due and payable
  in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in 
  governmental funds (2,148,243)         

Unamortized bond issuance costs are reported as an asset on
  the statement of net assets 366,867             

Accrued interest on long-term liabilities is reported as a liability
  on the statement of net assets (983,801)            

The net pension assets of the pension funds
  are included in the governmental activities in the 
  statement of net assets 20,457,111        

Net pension obligation is not due and payable in the current period and,
  therefore, is deferred in the governmental funds (807,626)            

Net other postemployment benefits obligation is not due and payable
  in the current period and, therefore, is deferred in the governmental funds (398,974)            

The net assets of the internal service funds are 
  included in the governmental activities in the 
  statement of net assets 89,587               

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 158,424,542$    

April 30, 2011

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Downtown Science and
General TIF Technology TIF

REVENUES
Property taxes 9,965,168$        2,753,696$    3,002,231$         
Other taxes 28,866,984        -                 -                     
Licenses and permits 2,951,538          -                 -                     
Fines  1,312,159          -                 -                     
Charges for services 2,718,276          5,500             -                     
Intergovernmental 6,251,295          -                 -                     
Investment income 5,623                17,592           181                    
Other income 326,737             -                 -                     

Total revenues 52,397,780        2,776,788      3,002,412           

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 10,992,319        -                 27,722                
Health and welfare 1,198,498          -                 -                     
Public safety 28,816,007        -                 -                     
Public works 10,746,458        -                 -                     

Capital outlay -                    611,387         -                     
Debt service

Principal retirement -                    -                 -                     
Interest and fiscal charges -                    -                 -                     

Total expenditures 51,753,282        611,387         27,722                

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES 644,498             2,165,401      2,974,690           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 124,014             -                 -                     
Transfers in 237,700             -                 4,021,085           
Transfers (out) (281,000)           (6,035,462)     (6,784,610)         

Total other financing sources (uses) 80,714               (6,035,462)     (2,763,525)         

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 725,212             (3,870,061)     211,165              

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), MAY 1 10,035,880        8,549,993      1,514,116           

Prior period adjustment -                    -                 -                     

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), MAY 1, RESTATED 10,035,880        8,549,993      1,514,116           

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 10,761,092$      4,679,932$    1,725,281$         

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

- 9 -



Economic Building and West Dempster
Development Equipment TIF Nonmajor Total

-$                   981,230$       35,446$             4,452,032$       21,189,803$    
457,220              3,450,745      -                     5,052,270         37,827,219      

-                     -                 -                     196,681            3,148,219        
-                     -                 -                     -                   1,312,159        
-                     -                 -                     377,083            3,100,859        
-                     12,733,443    48,630               2,400,357         21,433,725      
-                     24,971           2                        1,529                49,898            
-                     59,253           -                     15,781              401,771           

457,220              17,249,642    84,078               12,495,733       88,463,653      

140,731              1,116,465      154,211             1,799,895         14,231,343      
-                     -                 -                     482,006            1,680,504        
-                     -                 -                     636,096            29,452,103      
-                     -                 -                     1,684,305         12,430,763      
-                     23,232,803    -                     1,165,998         25,010,188      

-                     -                 -                     5,555,321         5,555,321        
-                     -                 -                     2,613,492         2,613,492        

140,731              24,349,268    154,211             13,937,113       90,973,714      

316,489              (7,099,626)     (70,133)              (1,441,380)        (2,510,061)      

-                     20,000           -                     -                   144,014           
-                     9,741,930      -                     2,332,441         16,333,156      

(449,069)            (608,000)        (59,252)              (1,816,241)        (16,033,634)    

(449,069)            9,153,930      (59,252)              516,200            443,536           

(132,580)            2,054,304      (129,385)            (925,180)           (2,066,525)      

1,562,799           720,552         (3,550,150)         10,246,201       29,079,391      

-                     289,081         -                     -                   289,081           

1,562,799           1,009,633      (3,550,150)         10,246,201       29,368,472      

1,430,219$         3,063,937$    (3,679,535)$       9,321,021$       27,301,947$    

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -
  TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (2,066,525)$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
  activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures; however, they are
  capitalized and depreciated in the statement of activities 5,250,931         

Contributions of capital assets 1,233,847         

The change in certain revenues that do not meet the Village's revenue recognition
  criteria are not recognized in the governmental funds (428,613)           
 
The repayment of the principal portion of long-term debt is reported
  as an expenditure when due in governmental funds but as a reduction of 
  principal outstanding in the statement of activities 5,555,155         
 
The amortization of premium on long-term debt issued is reported
  as a reduction of expense on the statement of activities 104,679            

The amortization of discount on long-term debt is reported
  as an expense on the statement of activities (1,910)               

The amortization of the loss on refunding is reported as an expense on the statement of activities (20,068)             
  
The amortization of bond issuance costs is reported as an expense on the statement of activities (35,974)             
 
The change in the accrual of interest on long-term debt is reported as an expense
  on the statement of activities 66,934              

The gain on disposal of capital assets is recorded on the statement
  of activities as general revenues (1,414,705)        

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require
  the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
  reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Depreciation (3,345,937)        
Change in compensated absences liability (46,759)             
Change in net pension asset (691,883)           
Net pension obligations (336,743)           
Net other postemployment benefits obligations (101,275)           

The change in net assets of internal service funds is reported
  in governmental activities (267,691)           

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 3,453,463$       

For the Year Ended April 30, 2011

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Governmental
Activities

Water Nonmajor Internal
and Sewer Enterprise Total Service

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,099,107$          8,409$              6,107,516$           2,154,266$          
Receivables

Property taxes -                       -                    -                        122,894                
Other taxes 35,529                 -                    35,529                  49,006                  
Accounts, net 2,315,090            -                    2,315,090             -                       
Interest -                       -                    -                        2                           

Inventory 175,653               -                    175,653                -                       

Total current assets 8,625,379            8,409                 8,633,788             2,326,168             

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets

Nondepreciable capital assets 787,868               -                    787,868                -                       
Depreciable capital assets 43,039,307          3,546,909         46,586,216           -                       
Accumulated depreciation (20,217,848)        (3,391,093)        (23,608,941)          -                       

Net capital assets 23,609,327          155,816            23,765,143           -                       

Total assets 32,234,706          164,225            32,398,931           2,326,168             

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 1,989,629            8,326                 1,997,955             69,574                  
Accrued payroll 22,961                 -                    22,961                  577                       
Accrued interest 21,904                 -                    21,904                  -                       
Due to governmental funds 20,606                 -                    20,606                  -                       
Compensated absences payable 3,443                   -                    3,443                    -                       
Claims and judgments payable -                       -                    -                        1,010,821             
General obligation bonds and notes payable 212,236               -                    212,236                -                       

                                                                                                                           
Total current liabilities 2,270,779            8,326                 2,279,105             1,080,972             

                                                                                                                           
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Compensated absences payable 61,039                 -                    61,039                  -                       
Claims and judgments payable -                       -                    -                        1,155,609             
General obligation bonds and notes payable 1,491,962            -                    1,491,962             -                       

Total long-term liabilities 1,553,001            -                    1,553,001             1,155,609             

Total liabilities 3,823,780            8,326                 3,832,106             2,236,581             

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 21,905,129          155,816            22,060,945           -                       
Unrestricted 6,505,797            83                      6,505,880             89,587                  

                                                                                                                           
TOTAL NET ASSETS 28,410,926$        155,899$          28,566,825$         89,587$                

Business-Type Activities

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

April 30, 2012

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Governmental
Activities

Water Nonmajor Internal
and Sewer Enterprise Total Service

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 10,141,790$        68,295$            10,210,085$        840,732$          

Total operating revenues 10,141,790          68,295              10,210,085          840,732            

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations

Personnel services -                       -                    -                       188,728            
Professional services -                       -                    -                       102,925            
Purchased services -                       -                    -                       1,688,884         
Land and building rental -                       68,375              68,375                 -                    
Water and sewerage 5,907,569            -                    5,907,569            -                    
Water meters 537,745               -                    537,745               -                    
Flood control 507,651               -                    507,651               -                    

Depreciation 536,117               177,345            713,462               -                    

Total operating expenses 7,489,082            245,720            7,734,802            1,980,537         

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 2,652,708            (177,425)           2,475,283            (1,139,805)        

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property taxes -                       -                    -                       241,022            
Utility taxes 494,673               -                    494,673               630,055            
Investment income (1,094)                  -                    (1,094)                  1,037                
Interest expense and fiscal charges (49,683)                -                    (49,683)                -                    

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 443,896               -                    443,896               872,114            

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 3,096,604            (177,425)           2,919,179            (267,691)           

TRANSFERS
Transfers (out) (299,522)              -                    (299,522)              -                    

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,797,082            (177,425)           2,619,657            (267,691)           

NET ASSETS, MAY 1 25,613,844          333,324            25,947,168          357,278            

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30 28,410,926$        155,899$          28,566,825$        89,587$            

Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Water Nonmajor Internal 
and Sewer Enterprise Total Service

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users 9,972,976$       68,295$            10,041,271$     856,896$          
Payments to suppliers (5,918,351)        (76,636)             (5,994,987)        (1,669,009)        
Payments to employees (1,006,246)        -                    (1,006,246)        (188,151)           

Net cash from operating activities 3,048,379         (8,341)               3,040,038         (1,000,264)        

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
   FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interfund balances (278,916)           -                    (278,916)           -                    
Property taxes -                    -                    -                    241,022            
Utility taxes 494,673            -                    494,673            630,055            

Net cash from noncapital 
  financing activities 215,757            -                    215,757            871,077            

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
   RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital assets purchased (1,873,130)        -                    (1,873,130)        -                    
Principal paid on general obligation bonds (156,288)           -                    (156,288)           -                    
Principal paid on IEPA notes (47,435)             -                    (47,435)             -                    
Interest paid on bonds and notes (60,244)             -                    (60,244)             -                    

 
Net cash from capital and 
  related financing activities (2,137,097)        -                    (2,137,097)        -                    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received (1,096)               -                    (1,096)               1,046                

Net cash from investing activities (1,096)               -                    (1,096)               1,046                

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
  CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,125,943         (8,341)               1,117,602         (128,141)           

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, MAY 1 4,973,164         16,750              4,989,914         2,282,407         

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, APRIL 30 6,099,107$       8,409$              6,107,516$       2,154,266$       

Business-Type Activities

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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Water Nonmajor Internal 
and Sewer Enterprise Total Service

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
  (LOSS) TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM
  OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) 2,652,708$       (177,425)$         2,475,283$       (1,139,805)$      
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

    to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation 536,117            177,345            713,462            -                    
Change in assets and liabilities

Receivables (168,814)           -                    (168,814)           16,164              
Inventories 10,867              -                    10,867              -                    
Accounts payable 19,712              (8,261)               11,451              (21,987)             
Accrued payroll 742                   -                    742                   577                   
Compensated absences payable (2,953)               -                    (2,953)               -                    
Claims and judgments payable -                    -                    -                    144,787            

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,048,379$       (8,341)$             3,040,038$       (1,000,264)$      

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital asset additions financed with 
accrued liabilities and contract retentions 1,638,984$       -$                  1,638,984$       -$                  

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Pension
Trust Agency

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 209,276$           995,551$           
Investments

U.S. Government obligations 10,890,906        -                    
U.S. Government agency obligations 21,476,848        -                    
Equity mutual funds 26,112,700        -                    
Common stock 33,198,883        
IMET 3,047,493          -                    
Debt mutual funds 23,538,186        -                    
Money market funds 5,819,402          -                    
Municipal bonds 3,521,734          -                    
Corporate bonds 10,853,344        
Certificates of deposit -                    354,366             

Receivables
Accrued interest 434,851             -                    

Due from governmental funds 344,048             -                    

Total assets 139,447,671      1,349,917$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 19,516               14,350$             
Due to governmental funds 46,521               
Deposits payable -                    565,114             
Other payables -                    770,453             

Total liabilities 66,037               1,349,917$        

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
  PENSION BENEFITS 139,381,634$    

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

April 30, 2012

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer 4,294,045$             
Participants 1,761,934               

Total contributions 6,055,979               

INVESTMENT INCOME
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 3,471,037               
Interest income 3,369,324               

Total investment income 6,840,361               

Less investment expense (128,597)                

Net investment income 6,711,764               

Total additions 12,767,743             

DEDUCTIONS
Administrative 255,664                  
Pension benefits and refunds 10,978,888             

Total deductions 11,234,552             

NET INCREASE 1,533,191               

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS
May 1 137,848,443           

April 30 139,381,634$         

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

April 30, 2012 
 
 
 

- 25 - 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 g. Inventories 
 
  Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out 

(FIFO) method.   
 
 h. Prepaid Items/Expenses 
 
  Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of 

this report are recorded as prepaid items/expenses. 
 
 i. Capital Assets 
 
  Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets 

(e.g., roads, underground water and sewer systems), are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements.  Capital assets are defined by the Village as assets with an initial, 
individual cost of more than $20,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of five 
years.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if 
purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market 
value at the date of donation. 

 
  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset 

or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.  Improvements are capitalized and 
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable. 

 
  Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 

constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of 
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets 
constructed.  Property, plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
Assets  Years 

   
Streets and land improvements  20-100 
Buildings  50 
Furniture, equipment and vehicles  5-20 
Water storage tanks, meters, pumps, pump houses and hydrants  20-75 
Underground water and sewer system  50-100 
Books and materials  10 
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4. RECEIVABLES (Continued) 
 
 a. Property Taxes (Continued) 
 
  The 2012 tax levy, which attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1, 

2012, has not been recorded as a receivable as of April 30, 2012 as the tax has not yet 
been levied by the Village and will not be levied until December 2012 and, therefore, 
the levy is not measurable at April 30, 2012.  

 
 b. Other Taxes 
 
  Other taxes receivable are comprised of the following at April 30, 2012: 
 

 Amount 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES  
Municipal sales tax $ 4,334,451 
Home rule sales tax   3,648,740 
State income tax   1,932,343 
State use tax   230,244 
Telecommunications tax   894,245 
Hotel tax   91,223 
Local fuel tax   66,057 
Auto rental tax   9,262 
Utility tax   337,277 
  
TOTAL $ 11,543,842 

 
 c. Other Receivables 
 
  Other receivables are comprised of the following at April 30, 2012: 
 

 Amount 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES  
Franchise fees $ 72,974 
Wireless alarm billings   10,205 
Other   410,626 
  
TOTAL $ 493,805 

 

- 35 -



VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
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4. RECEIVABLES (Continued) 
 
 d. Notes Receivable 
 
  Notes receivable are comprised of the following at April 30, 2012: 
 

GENERAL FUND  
 Zye Gzunt property sale $ 210,000 
 Centre East Inc.   225,000 
  
TOTAL $ 435,000 

 
 e. Due From Other Governments 
 
  Due from other governments is comprised of the following at April 30, 2012: 
 

 Amount 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES  
 Federal grants $ 1,052,229 
 State grants   202,697 
 Local grants   477,570 
 Motor fuel tax   135,933 
 County court fines   76,516 
 Other   41,089 
  
TOTAL $ 1,986,034 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2012 was as follows: 
 

 Balances   Balances 
 May 1 Increases Decreases April 30 
     
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES     
 Capital assets not being depreciated     
  Land $ 38,915,513 $ 3,318,313 $ 1,556 $ 42,232,270 
  Construction in progress   1,005,392   1,673,955   460,614   2,218,733 
   Total capital assets not being depreciated   39,920,905   4,992,268   462,170   44,451,003 
     
 Capital assets being depreciated     
  Streets and land improvements   154,219,264   21,459   -   154,240,723 
  Buildings    49,874,648   625,331   1,409,226   49,090,753 
  Furniture, equipment and vehicles   17,263,867   1,306,334   478,755   18,091,446 
   Total capital assets being depreciated   221,357,779   1,953,124   1,887,981   221,422,922 
     
 Less accumulated depreciation for     
  Streets and land improvements   77,345,215   1,289,150   -   78,634,365 
  Buildings    8,157,279   978,830   70,462   9,065,647 
  Furniture, equipment and vehicles   9,248,028   1,077,957   404,370   9,921,615 
   Total accumulated depreciation   94,750,522   3,345,937   474,832   97,621,627 
     
   Total capital assets being depreciated, net   126,607,257   (1,392,813)   1,413,149   123,801,295 
     
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES      
  CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 166,528,162 $ 3,599,455 $ 1,875,319 $ 168,252,298 

 
 Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities as 

follows: 
 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES  
 General government $ 168,203 
 Public safety   1,275,805 
 Public works   1,901,929 
  
TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 3,345,937 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

 Balances   Balances 
 May 1 Increases Decreases April 30 
     
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES     
 Capital assets not being depreciated     
  Land $ 85,239 $ - $ - $ 85,239 
     Construction in progress   -   702,629   -   702,629 
   Total capital assets not being depreciated   85,239   702,629   -   787,868 
     
 Capital assets being depreciated     
  Land improvement   3,546,909   -   -   3,546,909 
  Furniture, equipment and vehicles   886,631   72,787   -   959,418 
  Water storage tanks, meters, pumps, pump 
    houses and hydrants 

 
  4,315,333 

 
  631,800 

 
  - 

 
  4,947,133 

  Underground water and sewer system   35,027,859   2,104,897   -   37,132,756 
   Total capital assets being depreciated   43,776,732   2,809,484   -   46,586,216 
     
 Less accumulated depreciation for     
  Land improvements   3,213,749   177,345   -   3,391,094 
  Furniture, equipment and vehicles   546,742   41,088   -   587,830 
  Water storage tanks, meters, pumps, pump 
    houses and hydrants 

 
  3,107,799 

 
  134,228 

 
  - 

 
  3,242,027 

  Underground water and sewer systems   16,027,189   360,801   -   16,387,990 
   Total accumulated depreciation   22,895,479   713,462   -   23,608,941 
     
   Total capital assets being depreciated, net   20,881,253   2,096,022   -   22,977,275 
     
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES      
  CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 20,966,492 $ 2,798,651 $ - $ 23,765,143 

 
 Component Units 
 
 Centre East Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium and Office Building Authority 
 

 Balances   Balances 
 May 1 Increases Decreases April 30 
     
 Capital assets not being depreciated     
  Land  $ 1,858,026 $ - $ - $ 1,858,026 
     
 Capital assets being depreciated     
  Buildings   18,117,710   -   -   18,117,710 
  Furniture, equipment and vehicles   942,584   -   -   942,584 
   Total capital assets being depreciated   19,060,294   -   -   19,060,294 
     
 Less accumulated depreciation for     
  Buildings   6,517,666   456,966   -   6,974,632 
  Furniture, equipment and vehicles   729,264   35,274   -   764,538 
   Total accumulated depreciation   7,246,930   492,240   -   7,739,170 
     
   Total capital assets being depreciated, net   11,813,364   (492,240)   -   11,321,124 
     
AUTHORITY CAPITAL ASSETS, NET  $ 13,671,390 $ (492,240) $ - $ 13,179,150 

 
- 38 -



VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

April 30, 2012 
 
 
 

- 39 - 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
 Component Units (Continued) 
 
 Skokie Public Library 
 

 Balances   Balances 
 May 1 Increases Decreases April 30 
     
 Capital assets not being depreciated     
  Land  $ 1,488,336 $ - $ - $ 1,488,336 
     
 Capital assets being depreciated     
  Buildings   3,035,695   -   -   3,035,695 
  Building improvements   27,899,513   93,140   -   27,992,653 
  Land improvements   750,091   -   -   750,091 
  Furniture, equipment and vehicles   3,018,382   587,216   157,290   3,448,308 
  Books and materials   11,135,357   1,092,120   1,577,944   10,649,533 
   Total capital assets being depreciated   45,839,038   1,772,476   1,735,234   45,876,280 
     
 Less accumulated depreciation for     
  Buildings   3,035,695   -   -   3,035,695 
  Building improvements   15,399,906   1,368,978   -   16,768,884 
  Land improvements   137,345   37,505   -   174,850 
  Furniture, equipment and vehicles   2,309,991   284,746   157,290   2,437,447 
  Books and materials   5,926,530   1,008,746   1,577,944   5,357,332 
   Total accumulated depreciation   26,809,467   2,699,975   1,735,234   27,774,208 
     
   Total capital assets being depreciated, net   19,029,571   (927,499)   -   18,102,072 
     
LIBRARY CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 20,517,907 $ (927,499) $ - $ 19,590,408 

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities as 
follows: 
 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES    
  Culture and education   $ 2,699,975 
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6. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 
 High-Level Excess Liability Pool - The Village is a member of the High-Level Excess 

Liability Pool (the POOL) which consists of 15 Illinois municipalities.  The purpose of the 
POOL is to act as a joint self-insurance pool for the purpose of seeking the prevention or 
lessening of liability claims for injuries to persons or property or claims for errors and 
omissions made against the members and other parties included within the scope of 
coverage of the POOL.  The coverage provided by the POOL is $5,000,000 per occurrence 
and in the aggregate for each member, with a self-insured retention of $2,000,000 per 
member.  In addition, the POOL provides excess insurance of $5,000,000 per occurrence 
for claims in excess of $6,000,000. 

 
 The POOL is governed by a Board of Directors which consists of one appointed 

representative from each member municipality.  Each Director has an equal vote.  The 
officers of the POOL are elected by the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors 
determines the general policy of the POOL, makes all appropriations, approves contracts, 
adopts resolutions providing for the issuance of debt by the POOL, adopts by-laws, rules 
and regulations and exercises such powers and performs such duties as may be prescribed 
in the POOL agreement or the by-laws. 

 
 The Village does not exercise any control over the activities of the POOL beyond its 

representation on the Board of Directors. 
 
 The Village of Elk Grove Village, Illinois (the initial Host Member) issued $5,000,000 of 

general obligation bonds in 1987 to provide initial funding for the POOL.  The bond 
proceeds were put into escrow with LaSalle National Bank as escrow agent.  An 
intergovernmental agreement among the POOL, the Village of Elk Grove Village and the 
members provides that the POOL and its members are obligated to the Village of Elk 
Grove Village for payment of principal and interest on the bonds until such bonds have 
been retired.  The bonds were retired December 1, 1995. 

 
 The POOL was organized on April 1, 1987 with the initial agreement which has been 

extended to April 30, 2018.  The Village has committed to purchase excess liability 
insurance from the POOL through the term of the agreement.  Annual premiums are 
calculated based on a formula which specifies the following four criteria: (1) miles of 
streets; (2) full-time equivalent employees; (3) number of motor vehicles and (4) operating 
revenues.  
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
 a. General Obligation Bonds 
 
  The Village issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and 

construction of major capital facilities.  General obligation bonds have been issued 
for both general government and proprietary activities.  These bonds, therefore, are 
reported in the proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary 
revenues.  In addition, general obligation bonds have been issued to refund both 
general obligation bonds and revenue bonds.  Additionally, general obligation bonds 
have been issued for the Library and are to be repaid by the Library. 

 
  General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of 

the Village. 
 
 b. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 

 Fund 
Debt 

Retired by 

 
Balances 
May 1  

 
 

Additions 

 
Refundings/ 
Reductions 

 
Balances 
April 30 

Due 
Within 

One Year 
       
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES       
       
$4,764,187 1994 Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency 
(IEPA) Water Pollution Control 
Revolving Loan due in semiannual 
installments of $135,049 to $159,211 
plus interest at 3.015% through 
July 31, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
 
 
$ 472,505 

 
 
 
 
 
 
$ - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
$ 316,057 

 
 
 
 
 
 
$ 156,448 

 
 
 
 
 
 
$ 156,448 

       
$599,000 Special Service Area #2 
Note, Series 2002, dated March 1, 
2002, due in annual installments of 
$58,288 to $71,499 plus interest at 
4.125% through March 1, 2012. 

 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
  71,523 

 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
  71,523 

 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
  - 

       
$41,654 Special Service Area #3 
Note, Series 2002, dated March 1, 
2002, due in annual installments of 
$4,053 to $4,971 plus interest at 
4.125% through March 1, 2012. 

 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
  4,974 

 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
  4,974 

 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
  - 

       
$540,000 Special Service Area #4 
Note, Series 2003, dated February 28, 
2003, due in annual installments of 
$51,052 to $62,689 plus interest at 
3.45% through March 1, 2013. 

 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
  123,278 

 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
  60,575 

 
 
 
 
  62,703 

 
 
 
 
  62,703 

       
$45,400 Special Service Area #5 
Note, Series 2005, dated February 23, 
2005, due in annual installments of 
$3,942 to $5,384 plus interest at 
3.90% through March 1, 2015. 

 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
  20,287 

 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
  4,781 

 
 
 
 
  15,506 

 
 
 
 
  4,970 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
 b. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
 

 Fund 
Debt 

Retired by 

 
Balances 
May 1  

 
 

Additions 

 
Refundings/ 
Reductions 

 
Balances 
April 30 

Due 
Within 

One Year 
       
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
  (Continued) 

      

       
$1,758,800 Special Service Area #6 
Note, Series 2008, due in annual 
installments of $75,203 to $102,046 
plus interest at 3.40% through 
March 1, 2018. 

 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
$ 1,288,946 

 
 
 
 
$ - 

 
 
 
 
$ 166,854 

 
 
 
 
$ 1,122,092 

 
 
 
 
$ 172,320 

       
$200,000 Special Service Area #8 
Note, Series 2008, due in annual 
installments of $8,552 to $11,604 
plus interest at 3.40% through 
March 1, 2018. 

 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
  146,571 

 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
  18,974 

 
 
 
 
  127,597 

 
 
 
 
  19,595 

       
$7,895,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002A 
dated December 1, 2002 due in 
annual installments of $105,000 to 
$1,315,000 plus interest at 2.0% to 
5.0% through December 1, 2022. 

 
 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
 
  1,705,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
 
  115,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  1,590,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  125,000 

       
$7,755,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002B 
dated December 1, 2002 due in 
annual installments of $520,000 to 
$765,000 plus interest at 2.0% to 
4.1% through December 1, 2015. 

 
 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
 
  3,480,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
 
  635,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  2,845,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  665,000 

       
$12,175,000 Taxable General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 dated 
June 1, 2007 due in annual 
installments of $460,000 to 
$1,065,000 plus interest at 5.375% to 
5.650% through December 1, 2026. 

 
 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
 
  11,715,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
 
  485,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  11,230,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  505,000 

       
$1,145,000 Special Service Area #9 
Note, Series 2009, due in equal 
annual installments of $76,138 
including interest at 4.36% through 
March 1, 2019. 

 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
  953,977 

 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
  101,826 

 
 
 
 
  852,151 

 
 
 
 
  106,382 

       
$1,475,000 Special Service Area #9 
Note, Series 2010, due in equal 
annual installments of $89,541 
including interest at 3.85% through 
March 1, 2020. 

 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
  1,351,276 

 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
  128,314 

 
 
 
 
  1,222,962 

 
 
 
 
  133,298 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
 b. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
 

 Fund 
Debt 

Retired by 

 
Balances 
May 1 

 
 

Additions 

 
Refundings/ 
Reductions 

 
Balances 
April 30 

Due 
Within 

One Year 
       
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
  (Continued) 

      

       
$21,730,000 General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2009A dated 
August 13, 2009, due in annual 
installments of $273,296 to 
$3,088,587 plus interest at 2.0% to 
3.5% through December 1, 2018. 

 
 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
 
$ 17,257,977 

 
 
 
 
 
$ - 

 
 
 
 
 
$ 2,963,712 

 
 
 
 
 
$ 14,294,265 

 
 
 
 
 
$ 3,036,989 

       
$18,420,000 Taxable General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2009B 
dated August 13, 2009, due in annual 
installments of $1,040,000 to 
$1,930,000 plus interest at 4.11% to 
6.04% through December 1, 2029.  
Pursuant to the American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act, the Village is 
eligible to receive a rebate from the 
U.S. Treasury Department of 35% of 
the interest paid each year.  The net 
interest rate for the Series 2009B 
build American Bonds, after rebate, is 
2.67% to 3.93%.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  18,420,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  18,420,000 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  - 

       
$14,885,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 dated 
September 9, 2010, due in annual 
installments of $40,973 to $632,798 
plus interest at 1.0% to 5.0% through 
December 1, 2017. 

 
 
 
 

Debt 
Service 

 
 
 
 
 
  3,883,283 

 
 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
 
  482,565 

 
 
 
 
 
  3,400,718 

 
 
 
 
 
  500,775 

       
  Total bonds and notes    60,894,597   -   5,555,155   55,339,442   5,488,480 
       
Unamortized premium    857,877   -   104,679   753,198   - 
Unamortized discount    (30,566)   -   (1,910)   (28,656)   - 
Unamortized loss on refunding    (217,720)   -   (20,068)   (197,652)   - 
       
  Total debt service fund bonds 
    and notes 

  
  61,504,188 

 
  - 

 
  5,637,856 

 
  55,866,332 

 
  5,488,480 

       
Compensated absences General   2,101,484   2,738,283   2,691,524   2,148,243   114,716 
Net pension obligation General   470,883   336,743   -   807,626   - 
Net other postemployment benefits 
  obligation 

 
General 

 
  297,699 

 
  101,275 

 
  - 

 
  398,974 

 
  - 

       
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL 
  ACTIVITIES 

  
$ 64,374,254 

 
$ 3,176,301 

 
$ 8,329,380 

 
$ 59,221,175 

 
$ 5,603,196 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
 b. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
 

 Fund 
Debt 

Retired by 

 
Balances 
May 1 

 
 

Additions 

 
Refundings/ 
Reductions 

 
Balances 
April 30 

Due  
Within  

One Year 
       
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES       
       
$21,730,000 General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2009A dated 
August 13, 2009, due in annual 
installments of $273,296 to 
$3,088,587 plus interest at 2.00% to 
3.50% through December 1, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
Water and 

Sewer 

 
 
 
 
 
$ 1,482,023 

 
 
 
 
 
$ - 

 
 
 
 
 
$ 156,288 

 
 
 
 
 
$ 1,325,735 

 
 
 
 
 
$ 163,011 

       
$14,885,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 dated 
September 9, 2010, due in annual 
installments of $4,028 to $62,203 
plus interest at 1.00% to 5.00% 
through December 1, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
Water and 

Sewer 

 
 
 
 
 
  381,717 

 
 
 
 
 
  - 

 
 
 
 
 
  47,435 

 
 
 
 
 
  334,282 

 
 
 
 
 
  49,225 

       
  Total Water and Sewer Fund 
    Bonds 

  
  1,863,740 

 
  - 

 
  203,723 

 
  1,660,017 

 
  212,236 

       
 
Unamortized premium 

Water and 
Sewer 

 
  75,208 

 
  - 

 
  10,744 

 
  64,464 

 
  - 

       
 
Unamortized loss on refunding 

Water and 
Sewer 

 
  (23,663) 

 
  - 

 
  (3,380) 

 
  (20,283) 

 
  - 

   
  1,915,285 

 
  - 

 
  211,087 

 
  1,704,198 

 
  212,236 

 
Compensated absences 

Water and 
Sewer 

 
  67,436 

 
  93,097 

 
  96,051 

 
  64,482 

 
  3,443 

       
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE 
  ACTIVITIES 

  
$ 1,982,721 

 
$ 93,097 

 
$ 307,138 

 
$ 1,768,680 

 
$ 215,679 

- 45 -



VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

April 30, 2012 
 
 
 

- 46 - 

7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
 b. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
 

 Fund 
Debt 

Retired by 

 
Balances 
May 1 

 
 

Additions 

 
Refundings/ 
Reductions 

 
Balances 
April 30 

Due  
Within  

One Year 
       
COMPONENT UNIT - LIBRARY       
       
$14,885,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 dated 
September 9, 2010, due in annual 
installments of $175,000 to 
$1,230,000 plus interest at 1.0% to 
5.0% through December 1, 2017. 

 
 
 

Library 
Debt 

Service 

 
 
 
 
 
 $ 10,400,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 $ - 

 
 
 
 
 
 $ 870,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 $ 9,530,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 $ 890,000 

       
  Total bonds    10,400,000   -   870,000   9,530,000   890,000 
       
 
 
Unamortized premium 

Library 
Debt 

Service 

 
 
  1,071,413 

 
 
  - 

 
 
  107,141 

 
 
  964,272 

 
 
  - 

       
 
 
Unamortized loss on refunding 

Library 
Debt 

Service 

 
 
  (478,044) 

 
 
  - 

 
 
  (47,804) 

 
 
  (430,240) 

 
 
  - 

       
    10,993,369   -   929,337   10,064,032   890,000 
       
 
 
Capital leases 

Library 
General 
Fund 

 
 
  25,077 

 
 
  - 

 
 
  4,881 

 
 
  20,196 

 
 
  5,456 

       
 
 
Compensated absences 

Library 
General 
Fund 

 
 
  376,969 

 
 
  416,174 

 
 
  376,969 

 
 
  416,174 

 
 
  416,174 

       
TOTAL COMPONENT UNIT - 
   LIBRARY 

  
$ 11,395,415 

 
$ 416,174 

 
$ 1,311,187 

 
$10,500,402 

 
$ 1,311,630 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
 c. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 
 
  Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Governmental Activities 
Ending General Obligation Bonds IEPA Loans SSA Notes 
April 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

       
2013 $ 4,832,764 $ 2,307,023 $ 156,448 $ 2,358 $ 499,254 $ 123,603 
2014   4,966,677   2,169,308   -   -   452,985   105,556 
2015   4,431,484   2,026,075   -   -   470,033   88,508 
2016   4,594,950   1,875,874   -   -   482,153   70,861 
2017   3,971,286   1,712,150   -   -   500,311   52,704 
2018   2,736,093   1,560,123   -   -   518,662   33,851 
2019   2,206,729   1,444,558   -   -   305,868   16,152 
2020   2,015,000   1,340,078   -   -   173,745   5,038 
2021   2,115,000   1,239,086   -   -   -   - 
2022   2,225,000   1,131,261   -   -   -   - 
2023   2,340,000   1,015,307   -   -   -   - 
2024   2,275,000   892,039   -   -   -   - 
2025   2,395,000   769,414   -   -   -   - 
2026   2,530,000   636,697   -   -   -   - 
2027   2,680,000   487,805   -   -   -   - 
2028   1,715,000   330,086   -   -   -   - 
2029   1,820,000   226,500   -   -   -   - 
2030   1,930,000   116,572   -   -   -   - 
       
TOTAL $ 51,779,983 $ 21,279,956 $ 156,448 $ 2,358 $ 3,403,011 $ 496,273 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
 c. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity (Continued) 
 

Fiscal Year  Business-Type Activities 
Ending  General Obligation Bonds 
April 30  Principal Interest 

    
2013  $ 212,236 $ 52,570 
2014    223,323   47,340 
2015    233,516   41,836 
2016    245,051   34,880 
2017    258,713   27,098 
2018    268,907   17,052 
2019    218,271   7,639 
    
TOTAL  $ 1,660,017 $ 228,415 

 
Fiscal Year  Component Unit - Library 

Ending  General Obligation Bonds 
April 30  Principal Interest 

    
2013  $ 890,000 $ 372,275 
2014    930,000   336,675 
2015    965,000   299,475 
2016    1,010,000   251,225 
2017    1,075,000   200,725 
2018    1,105,000   163,100 
2019    1,145,000   124,425 
2020    1,180,000   84,350 
2021    1,230,000   43,050 
    
TOTAL  $ 9,530,000 $ 1,875,300 
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8. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES 
 
 a. Due From/To Other Funds 
 
  Due from/to other funds at April 30, 2012 consist of the following:  
 

 Due from Due to 
General   
 Nonmajor Governmental $ 79,243 $ 23,564 
   Total General   79,243   23,564 
   
Economic Development   
 Building and Equipment   -   585,516 
 Downtown TIF   7,595   - 
 Nonmajor Governmental   8,715   - 
   Total Economic Development   16,310   585,516 
 
Building and Equipment 

  

 Economic Development   585,516   - 
 Science and Technology   910,363   - 
 West Dempster TIF   111,340   - 
   Total Building and Equipment   1,607,219   - 
 
Downtown TIF 

  

 Science and Technology TIF   -   1,346,772 
 Economic Development   -   7,595 
 Nonmajor Governmental   -   15,334 
   Total Downtown TIF   -   1,369,701 
 
Water and Sewer 

  

 Nonmajor Governmental   -   20,606 
   Total Water and Sewer   -   20,606 
 
West Dempster TIF 

  

 Building and Equipment   -   111,340 
   Total West Dempster TIF   -   111,340 
 
Science and Technology TIF 

  

 Downtown TIF   1,346,772   - 
 Building and Equipment   -   910,363 
   Total Science and Technology TIF   1,346,772   910,363 
   
Nonmajor Governmental   
 General   23,564   79,243 
 Water and Sewer   20,606   - 
 Economic Development   15,334   8,715 
 Nonmajor Governmental   6,971   6,971 
   Total Nonmajor Governmental   66,475   94,929 
   
TOTAL $ 3,116,019 $ 3,116,019 
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8. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES (Continued) 
 
 c. Advances To/From Other Funds (Continued) 
 
  The purpose of advances are to reimburse operating costs incurred on behalf of the 

West Dempster TIF Fund. 
 
 d. Transfers 
 
  Transfers between funds during the year were as follows: 
 

 
Fund 

Transfers 
In 

Transfers 
Out 

   
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS   
  General  $ 237,700 $ 281,000 
  Downtown TIF   -   6,035,462 
  Science and Technology TIF   4,021,085   6,784,610 
  Economic Development   -   449,069 
  Building and Equipment   9,741,930   608,000 
  West Dempster TIF   -   59,252 
   
    Total major governmental   14,000,715   14,217,393 
   
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL   
  Local Fuel Tax   -   1,066,251 
  1991 IEPA   -   355 
  SSA # 4 Debt   -   29,200 
  SSA # 6 Debt   -   141,000 
  SSA # 9 Debt   -   67,500 
  Series 2002B Bond   630,027   - 
  Series 2007 Bond   1,126,511   - 
  Series 2009A Bond   35,908   225,000 
  Series 2009B Bond   454,000   - 
  SWANCC Debt Service   85,995   - 
  Centre East Development   -   286,935 
   
    Total nonmajor governmental   2,332,441   1,816,241 
   
    Total governmental funds   16,333,156   16,033,634 
   
MAJOR BUSINESS-TYPE FUNDS   
  Water and Sewer   -   299,522 
   
TOTAL TRANSFERS $ 16,333,156 $ 16,333,156 
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual

REVENUES
Taxes

Property taxes 8,190,869$       8,190,869$       9,965,168$       
Other taxes 26,403,418       26,403,418       28,866,984       

Licenses and permits 3,079,165         3,079,165         2,951,538         
Fines  1,549,775         1,549,775         1,312,159         
Charges for services 2,655,836         2,655,836         2,718,276         
Intergovernmental 5,983,965         5,983,965         6,251,295         
Investment income -                    -                    5,623                
Other revenue 419,006            419,006            326,737            

Total revenues 48,282,034       48,282,034       52,397,780       

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 11,869,872       11,889,638       10,992,319       
Health and welfare 1,169,923         1,170,313         1,198,498         
Public safety 24,265,857       24,285,541       28,816,007       
Public works 10,656,141       10,694,097       10,746,458       

Total expenditures 47,961,793       48,039,589       51,753,282       

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES 320,241            242,445            644,498            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 209,079            209,079            124,014            
Transfers in -                    -                    237,700            
Transfers (out) (195,005)           (195,005)           (281,000)           

Total other financing sources (uses) 14,074              14,074              80,714              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 334,315$          256,519$          725,212            

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 10,035,880       

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 10,761,092$     

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual

REVENUES
Property taxes 2,990,267$        2,990,267$        2,753,696$        
Charges for services -                     -                     5,500                 
Investment income -                     -                     17,592               

Total revenues 2,990,267          2,990,267          2,776,788          

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 7,473,195          7,473,195          611,387             

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (4,482,928)         (4,482,928)         2,165,401          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) -                     -                     (6,035,462)         

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (4,482,928)         (4,482,928)         (3,870,061)         

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 8,549,993          

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 4,679,932$        

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

DOWNTOWN TIF FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual

REVENUES
Property taxes 11,766,041$           11,766,041$           3,002,231$       
Investment income -                         -                         181                   

Total revenues 11,766,041             11,766,041             3,002,412         

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 5,650,106               5,650,106               27,722              

Total expenditures 5,650,106               5,650,106               27,722              

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES 6,115,935               6,115,935               2,974,690         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                         -                         4,021,085         
Transfers (out) -                         -                         (6,784,610)       

Total other financing sources (uses) -                         -                         (2,763,525)       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 6,115,935$             6,115,935$             211,165            

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 1,514,116         

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 1,725,281$       

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY TIF FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Unfunded
(Assets in
Excess of)
Actuarial

(4) Accrued
Unfunded Liability 
(Assets in (UAAL)

(1) Excess of) as a
Actuarial Actuarial (2) (3) Actuarial Percentage
Valuation Value Actuarial Funded Accrued (5) of Covered

Date of Accrued Ratio Liability Covered Payroll
December 31 Assets Liability (1)/(2) (2)-(1) Payroll (4)/(5)

2006 57,324,610$         55,718,597$         102.88% (1,606,013)$     18,084,208$        (8.88%)

2007 62,900,725 59,601,048           105.54% (3,299,677)       18,866,886          (17.49%)

2008 52,564,962 61,269,337           85.79% 8,704,375         19,602,823          44.40% 

2009 53,085,034 63,342,717           83.81% 10,257,683       19,802,646          51.80% 

2010 55,080,822 67,345,843           81.79% 12,265,021       19,951,708          61.47% 

2011 56,481,119 70,269,818           80.38% 13,788,699       20,010,432          68.91% 

April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Unfunded
(Assets in
Excess of)
Actuarial

(4) Accrued
Unfunded Liability
(Assets in (UAAL)

(1) Excess of) as a
Actuarial Actuarial (2) (3) Actuarial Percentage
Valuation Value Actuarial Funded Accrued (5) of Covered

Date of Accrued Ratio Liability Covered Payroll
December 31 Assets Liability (1)/(2) (2)-(1) Payroll (4)/(5)

2006 (82,333)$          -$                 N/A (82,333)$         -$                N/A

2007 (79,249) -                   N/A (79,249)           -                  N/A

2008 (306,621) -                   N/A (306,621)         -                  N/A

2009 (204,595) -                   N/A (204,595)         -                  N/A

2010 (169,555) -                   N/A (169,555)         -                  N/A

2011 (205,595) -                   N/A (205,595)         -                  N/A

N/A - not applicable

April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

(4) (UAAL)
(1) Unfunded as a

Actuarial Actuarial (2) (3) Actuarial Percentage
Valuation Value Actuarial Funded Accrued (5) of Covered

Date of Accrued Ratio Liability Covered Payroll
April 30 Assets Liability (1)/(2) (2)-(1) Payroll (4)/(5)

2007 70,321,013$     78,030,033$      90.12% 7,709,020$      8,124,105$      94.89%

2008 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2009 60,037,282       85,342,457        70.35% 25,305,175      8,538,090        296.38%

2010 69,065,364       88,084,625        78.41% 19,019,261      8,503,729        223.66%

2011 74,710,537       90,246,992        82.78% 15,536,455      8,770,919        177.14%

2012 74,000,783       94,788,184        78.07% 20,787,401      9,078,627        228.97%

N/A - not available

April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

POLICE PENSION FUND

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(See independent auditor's report.)
- 83 -



Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

(4) (UAAL)
(1) Unfunded as a

Actuarial Actuarial (2) (3) Actuarial Percentage
Valuation Value Actuarial Funded Accrued (5) of Covered

Date of Accrued Ratio Liability Covered Payroll
April 30 Assets Liability (1)/(2) (2)-(1) Payroll (4)/(5)

2007 62,080,891$     81,234,371$     76.42% 19,153,480$    8,025,062$         238.67%

2008 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2009 55,681,704       92,100,848       60.46% 36,419,144      9,011,394           404.15%

2010 58,921,092       95,942,694       61.41% 37,021,602      9,032,996           409.85%

2011 63,174,571       97,310,539       64.92% 34,135,968      8,924,705           382.49%

2012 65,380,851       98,973,344       66.06% 33,592,493      8,573,585           391.81%

N/A - not available

April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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(6)
Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

(4) (UAAL)
(1) Unfunded as a

Actuarial Actuarial (2) (3) Actuarial Percentage
Valuation Value Actuarial Funded Accrued (5) of Covered

Date of Accrued Ratio Liability Covered Payroll
April 30 Assets Liability (1)/(2) (2)-(1) Payroll (4)/(5)

2009 -$                  3,270,305$       0.00% 3,270,305$       41,072,404$        7.96%

2010 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2011 -                    5,711,195         0.00% 5,711,195         41,157,646          13.88%

2012 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Information for prior years are not available as the Village's first actuarial valuation was performed by May 1, 2008.

N/A - actuarial valuation not performed

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
- 85 -



Annual
Employer Required

Actual Contribution Percentage
Fiscal Year Contributions (ARC) Contributed

2007 1,634,812$         1,634,812$         100.00%

2008 1,545,198           1,545,198           100.00%

2009 1,540,782           1,540,782           100.00%

2010 1,442,888           1,570,866           91.85%

2011 1,322,649           1,662,817           79.54%

2012 1,444,640           1,771,311           81.56%

April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Annual
Employer Required

Actual Contribution Percentage
Fiscal Year Contributions (ARC) Contributed

2007 -$                    -$                    -                      

2008 5,323                  5,323                  100.00%

2009 5,952                  5,952                  100.00%

2010 5,958                  5,958                  100.00%

2011 6,554                  6,554                  100.00%

2012 5,467                  5,467                  100.00%

April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Annual
Employer Required

Actual Contribution Percentage
Fiscal Year Contributions (ARC) Contributed

2007 860,011$          820,206$          104.85%

2008 862,572            N/A N/A

2009 849,283            1,296,633         65.50%

2010 879,585            1,296,633         67.84%

2011 1,994,607         2,454,517         81.26%

2012 1,563,033         2,099,499         74.45%

N/A - not available

April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

POLICE PENSION FUND

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Annual
Employer Required

Actual Contribution Percentage
Fiscal Year Contributions (ARC) Contributed

2007 1,504,205$       1,446,317$       104.00%

2008 1,457,774         N/A N/A

2009 1,453,918         2,015,167         72.15%

2010 1,528,972         2,015,167         75.87%

2011 2,730,341         3,263,438         83.66%

2012 2,731,012         3,333,681         81.92%

N/A - not available

April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Annual
Employer Required

Actual Contribution Percentage
Fiscal Year Contributions (ARC) Contributed

2009 105,356$          205,460$          51.28%

2010 105,356            201,669            52.24%

2011 105,356            201,669            52.24%

2012 105,356            201,669            52.24%

Information for prior years are not available as the Village's first acturial valuation 
was performed May 1, 2008.

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL  
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 

 



MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 



GENERAL FUND 
 
 
The General Fund is a governmental fund used to account for resources which are not required to 
be accounted for in another fund. 
 
 



Original Final
Budget Budget Actual

TAXES
Property taxes 8,190,869$       8,190,869$       9,965,168$       

Other taxes
Personal property replacement tax 844,118            844,118            1,007,742         
Home rule sales tax 8,482,268         8,482,268         8,597,499         
Sales tax 11,324,364       11,324,364       11,876,038       
Hotel and motel tax 702,314            702,314            747,936            
Local use tax 865,731            865,731            945,528            
Utility tax 2,300,029         2,300,029         3,921,074         
Telecommunications tax 1,633,121         1,633,121         1,413,986         
Auto rental tax -                    -                    48,298              
Real estate transfer tax 200,773            200,773            228,610            
Foreign fire insurance 50,700              50,700              80,273              

26,403,418       26,403,418       28,866,984       

Total taxes 34,594,287       34,594,287       38,832,152       

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Motor vehicle licenses 729,170            729,170            742,786            
Liquor licenses 75,000              75,000              119,000            
Business licenses 526,000            526,000            160,423            
Dog and cat licenses 19,200              19,200              19,275              
Building permits 625,000            625,000            701,826            
Plumbing permits 105,000            105,000            115,794            
Electrical permits 65,000              65,000              67,220              
Miscellaneous permits 118,063            118,063            110,100            
Engineering permits -                    -                    111,150            
Cable franchise fees 653,996            653,996            698,265            
Natural gas franchise allotment 79,236              79,236              57,849              
Police alarm permits 83,500              83,500              47,850              

3,079,165         3,079,165         2,951,538         

FINES 
Court fines 292,000            292,000            259,832            
Parking fines 1,026,223         1,026,223         824,658            
Automated traffic fines 20,280              20,280              -                    
Administrative hearings 43,272              43,272              75,669              
Impoundment fees 168,000            168,000            152,000            

1,549,775         1,549,775         1,312,159         

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Administrative service charge 521,609 521,609 460,506
Parking meter fees 20,339 20,339 21,011
Police service fees 387,176 387,176 400,239
Fire service fees -    -    4,631

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual

CHARGES FOR SERVICES (Continued)
Fire alarm fees 12,600$            12,600$            6,850$              
Vital statistics service fees 45,000 45,000 35,962
Sign inspection fees 2,000 2,000 1,040
Elevator inspection fees 42,000              42,000              44,170              
Reinspection fees -                    -                    1,000                 
Weighs and measure fees 1,722                 1,722                 -                    
STAR transportation program 26,000              26,000              25,524              
Community refuse franchise fees 232,000            232,000            319,168            
Legal fees 5,224                 5,224                 3,180                 
Sidewalk repair charges 30,000              30,000              13,909              
Tree planting program 4,700                 4,700                 84,641              
CTA parking lot maintenance 31,120              31,120              17,500              
Fire department service fees 24,081              24,081              12,487              
Food sales 25,000              25,000              16,477              
Ambulance fees 1,245,000         1,245,000         1,203,532         
Health certificate postal fee -                    -                    97                      
Polling place rentals 265                    265                    15,250              
Passport services -             -             14,991       
Other charged services -                    -                    16,111              

2,655,836         2,655,836         2,718,276         

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
Federal grants

Managers office -                    -                    5,747                 
State grants

Public Health 277,775            277,775            317,246            
Human Services -                    -                    5,652                 
Drug reserve grants -                    -                    8,758                 
Fire training -                    -                    10,921              
Police training 16,299              16,299              41,437              
Other police grants 500,245            500,245            597,337            

Shared income tax 5,189,646         5,189,646         5,264,197         
5,983,965         5,983,965         6,251,295         

INVESTMENT INCOME -                    -                    5,623                 

OTHER REVENUE
CTA parking lot fees 83,376              83,376              101,807            
Unlcassified services 335,630            335,630            224,930            

419,006            419,006            326,737            

TOTAL REVENUES 48,282,034$     48,282,034$     52,397,780$     

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Budget Budget Actual

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Board of Trustees 246,453$             246,553$              248,896$              
Boards and Commissions 200,480              200,735               136,932               
Village Clerk 147,734              147,734               147,432               
Village Manager's Office 2,597,101            2,608,057             2,397,838             
Corporation counsel 674,816              674,816               657,786               
Finance 1,080,761            1,088,161             985,648               
Community development 1,309,828            1,309,828             1,276,356             
Insurance 6,423,289            6,423,289             5,961,627             
Other funded grant programs 8,000                  8,000                   27,681                 
Contingency 50,000                51,055                 22,222                 
Contributions 131,410              131,410               129,901               

12,869,872          12,889,638           11,992,319           
Less reimbursements (1,000,000)          (1,000,000)           (1,000,000)           

11,869,872          11,889,638           10,992,319           

HEALTH AND WELFARE 1,169,923            1,170,313             1,198,498             

PUBLIC SAFETY
Fire 10,507,247          10,508,633           13,830,655           
Police 13,758,610          13,776,908           14,985,352           

24,265,857          24,285,541           28,816,007           

PUBLIC WORKS 10,656,141          10,694,097           10,746,458           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 47,961,793$        48,039,589$         51,753,282$         

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Budget Budget Actual

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Board of Trustees 246,453$           246,553$           248,896$           

Boards and commissions
Plan Commission and Board of Appeals 50,584               50,584               35,029               
Board of Fire and Police Commissions 93,950               93,950               60,379               
Human Relations Commission 9,525                 9,780                 3,632                 
Traffic Safety Commission 2,175                 2,175                 1,948                 
Liquor Control Commission 1,000                 1,000                 811                    
Fine Arts Commission 14,217               14,217               12,634               
Beautification Commission 10,985               10,985               8,181                 
Board of Health 1,050                 1,050                 749                    
Appearance Code Commission 9,230                 9,230                 7,464                 
Consumer Affairs Commission 7,764                 7,764                 6,105                 

200,480             200,735             136,932             

Village Clerk
Elections 575                    375                    46                      
Records 147,159             147,359             147,386             

147,734             147,734             147,432             

Village Manager's Office
Administration and general services 664,415             664,415             617,403             
Personnel 267,167             267,167             255,382             
Multi-media 130,402             130,402             134,296             
Marketing division 305,833             311,207             285,761             
Human services 690,153             690,669             589,649             
Management information services 539,131             544,197             515,347             

2,597,101          2,608,057          2,397,838          

Corporation counsel
Counsel and legal services 606,932             607,332             595,757             
Scofflaw program 67,884               67,484               62,029               

674,816             674,816             657,786             

Finance
Administration 319,913             327,313             303,521             
Accounting 163,964             163,964             161,057             
Collection 216,518             216,518             211,055             

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Finance (Continued)

Purchasing 147,645$           147,645$           145,494$           
Duplicating 66,000               66,000               56,414               
Parking enforcement 166,721             166,721             108,107             

1,080,761          1,088,161          985,648             

Community development
Administration 340,025             340,025             339,841             
Building and zoning 458,896             458,896             436,381             
Property standards 325,682             325,682             318,534             
Planning 185,225             185,225             181,600             

1,309,828          1,309,828          1,276,356          

Insurance 6,423,289          6,423,289          5,961,627          

Other funded grant programs
DCEO grant 8,000                 8,000                 27,681               

Total other funded grant programs 8,000                 8,000                 27,681               

Contingency 50,000               51,055               22,222               

Contributions
Granting program 131,410             131,410             129,901             

131,410             131,410             129,901             

Total expenditures 12,869,872        12,889,638        11,992,319        

Less reimbursements (1,000,000)         (1,000,000)         (1,000,000)         

Total general government 11,869,872        11,889,638        10,992,319        

HEALTH AND WELFARE
Administration 243,785             242,485             240,999             

Environmental health 351,144             351,834             341,335             
Personal health services 334,343             333,343             314,599             
Blood program -                     -                     65,799               
Animal control 240,651             242,651             235,766             

Total health and welfare 1,169,923          1,170,313          1,198,498          

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
- 97 -



Original Final
Budget Budget Actual

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

PUBLIC SAFETY 
Fire

Administration 389,705$           389,705$           392,408$           
Fire prevention 423,977             423,977             376,241             
Firefighting 5,517,848          5,518,108          6,091,465          
Emergency medical services 3,964,952          3,964,952          4,053,151          
E-911 156,065             157,191             169,200             
Foreign fire insurance 54,700               54,700               17,098               
Pension contribution -                     -                     2,731,092          

10,507,247        10,508,633        13,830,655        

Police
Administration 2,134,021          2,134,705          2,005,482          
Communications 1,400,689          1,401,120          1,295,328          
Investigations 1,243,461          1,245,497          1,321,519          
Uniform patrol 7,927,744          7,942,464          7,785,719          
E-911 151,500             151,927             114,683             
Supplemental funding 901,195             901,195             899,544             
Pension contribution -                     -                     1,563,077          

13,758,610        13,776,908        14,985,352        

Total public safety 24,265,857        24,285,541        28,816,007        

PUBLIC WORKS
Administration 372,979             373,592             369,155             
Streets and alleys 1,641,306          1,661,695          1,714,292          
Trees maintenance 844,000             847,789             1,012,598          
Snow and ice removal 148,435             148,698             95,665               
Automotive maintenance 1,196,621          1,200,314          1,180,649          
Refuse collection 3,089,082          3,103,325          3,020,109          
Refuse disposal 1,053,470          1,077,470          1,084,602          
Buildings 683,067             704,829             727,564             
Civil engineering 615,902             615,902             618,905             
Traffic engineering 1,011,279          960,483             922,919             

Total public works 10,656,141        10,694,097        10,746,458        

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 47,961,793$      48,039,589$      51,753,282$      

(See independent auditor's report.)
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MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
 
 
Capital projects funds are governmental funds used to account for financial resources that are 
restricted, committed or assigned for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 
 
Building and Equipment Fund - to account for building construction, computerization and 
major equipment purchases. 
 
Economic Development Fund - to account for real estate transfers tax revenues and 
expenditures to stimulate economic development. 
 
West Dempster TIF Fund - to account for incremental property tax revenues that are restricted 
for improvements to the area encompassing the West Dempster Street commercial corridor and 
the abandoned Union Pacific Railroad right-of-way. 



Original Final
Budget Budget Actual

REVENUES
Property taxes 587,845$             587,845$             981,230$          
Other taxes 2,191,158            2,191,158            3,450,745         
Licenses and permits 20,000                 20,000                 -                    
Intergovernmental 520,547               520,547               12,733,443       
Investment income 20,000                 20,000                 24,971               
Miscellaneous -                       -                       59,253               

Total revenues 3,339,550            3,339,550            17,249,642       

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 1,814,038            2,367,495            1,116,465         
Capital outlay 14,908,555          27,850,670          24,398,800       
Less reimbursement from other funds -                       -                       (1,165,997)        

Total expenditures 16,722,593          30,218,165          24,349,268       

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (13,383,043)         (26,878,615)         (7,099,626)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 30,000                 30,000                 20,000               
Transfers in 280,005               280,005               9,741,930         
Transfers (out) -                       -                       (608,000)           

Total other financing sources (uses) 310,005               310,005               9,153,930         

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (13,073,038)$       (26,568,610)$       2,054,304         

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 720,552             

Prior period adjustment 289,081             

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1, RESTATED 1,009,633         

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 3,063,937$       

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Other taxes 401,545$        401,545$        457,220$          
Other income 200,000          200,000          -                   

Total revenues 601,545          601,545          457,220            

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 400,348          404,673          140,731            

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES 201,197          196,872          316,489            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) -                  -                  (449,069)          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 201,197$        196,872$        (132,580)          

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 1,562,799         

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 1,430,219$       

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes -$                     -$                     35,446$             
Intergovernmental -                       -                       48,630               
Investment income -                       -                       2                        

Total revenues -                       -                       84,078               

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 1,640,500            1,640,500            154,211             

Total expenditures 1,640,500            1,640,500            154,211             

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (1,640,500)           (1,640,500)           (70,133)             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) -                       -                       (59,252)             

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,640,500)$         (1,640,500)$         (129,385)           

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY 1 (3,550,150)        

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 (3,679,535)$      

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

WEST DEMPSTER TIF FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 



Special Debt Capital 
Revenue Service Projects Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1,902,681$       6,514,267$           262,502$         8,679,450$           
Investments 20,001              572,807                -                  592,808                
Receivables

Property taxes 1,074,088         1,569,845             -                  2,643,933             
Other taxes 84,797              382,337                7,437               474,571                
Accrued interest 18                     13                         -                  31                         
Other 10,205              -                        -                  10,205                  

Due from other governments 183,965            -                        -                  183,965                
Due from other funds 66,475              -                        -                  66,475                  

TOTAL ASSETS 3,342,230$       9,039,269$           269,939$         12,651,438$         

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 412,722$          42,230$                58,758$           513,710$              
Accrued payroll 108                   -                        -                  108                       
Deposits 3                       -                        -                  3                           
Deferred property taxes 1,056,778         1,544,055             -                  2,600,833             
Unearned revenue -                    120,834                -                  120,834                
Due to other funds 94,929              -                        -                  94,929                  

Total liabilities 1,564,540         1,707,119             58,758             3,330,417             

FUND BALANCES
Restricted

Highways and streets 560,222            -                        -                  560,222                
Employee benefits 627,602            -                        -                  627,602                
Commuter parking lot 117,316            -                        -                  117,316                
Debt service -                    7,332,150             -                  7,332,150             

Unrestricted
Committed

Highways and streets 386,018            -                        -                  386,018                
Public safety 126,563            -                        -                  126,563                
Capital projects -                    -                        211,181           211,181                

Unassigned (deficit) (40,031)             -                        -                  (40,031)                 

Total fund balances 1,777,690         7,332,150             211,181           9,321,021             
  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 3,342,230$       9,039,269$           269,939$         12,651,438$         

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects Total

REVENUES
Property taxes 2,105,104$       2,346,928$       -$                4,452,032$        
Other taxes 1,262,746         2,969,278         820,246           5,052,270          
Licenses and permits -                    196,681            -                  196,681             
Charges for service 377,083            -                    -                  377,083             
Intergovernmental 2,400,357         -                    -                  2,400,357          
Other income 15,781              -                    -                  15,781               
Investment income (283)                  1,812                -                  1,529                 

Total revenues 6,160,788         5,514,699         820,246           12,495,733        

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 1,197,020         85,995              516,880           1,799,895          
Health and welfare 482,006            -                    -                  482,006             
Public safety 636,096            -                    -                  636,096             
Public works 1,684,305         -                    -                  1,684,305          

Capital outlay 1,165,998         -                    -                  1,165,998          
Debt service

Principal -                    5,555,321         -                  5,555,321          
Interest and fiscal charges -                    2,613,492         -                  2,613,492          

Total expenditures 5,165,425         8,254,808         516,880           13,937,113        

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES 995,363            (2,740,109)        303,366           (1,441,380)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                    2,332,441         -                  2,332,441          
Transfers (out) (1,066,251)        (463,055)           (286,935)         (1,816,241)         

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,066,251)        1,869,386         (286,935)         516,200             
  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (70,888)             (870,723)           16,431             (925,180)            

FUND BALANCES, MAY 1 1,848,578         8,202,873         194,750           10,246,201        

FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30 1,777,690$       7,332,150$       211,181$         9,321,021$        

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Community
Motor Fuel Local Fuel Development

Tax Tax Block Grant

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 545,697$         319,961$         11,852$           
Investments -                  -                  -                  
Receivables

Property taxes -                  -                  -                  
Other taxes -                  66,057             -                  
Accrued interest -                  -                  -                  
Other -                  -                  -                  

Due from other governments 135,933           -                  6,943               
Due from other funds -                  -                  -                  

TOTAL ASSETS 681,630$         386,018$         18,795$           

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 121,408$         -$                3,003$             
Accrued payroll -                  -                  108                  
Deposits -                  -                  -                  
Deferred property taxes -                  -                  -                  
Due to other funds -                  -                  15,684             

Total liabilities 121,408           -                  18,795             

FUND BALANCES
Restricted

Highways and streets 560,222           -                  -                  
Employee benefits -                  -                  -                  
Commuter parking lot -                  -                  -                  

Unrestricted
Committed

Highways and streets -                  386,018           -                  
Public safety -                  -                  -                  

Unassigned (deficit) -                  -                  -                  

Total fund balances (deficit) 560,222           386,018           -                  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 681,630$         386,018$         18,795$           

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

April 30, 2012
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Illinois CTA
Municipal Visitor's Parking Wireless
Retirement Bureau Lot Alarm Total

755,207$          38,156$           97,611$           134,197$         1,902,681$       
-                    -                  20,001             -                   20,001              

1,074,088         -                  -                   -                   1,074,088         
8,364                10,376             -                   -                   84,797              

18                     -                  -                   -                   18                     
-                    -                  -                   10,205             10,205              

41,089              -                  -                   -                   183,965            
42,910              -                  23,565             -                   66,475              

1,921,676$       48,532$           141,177$         144,402$         3,342,230$       

229,216$          29,402$           11,854$           17,839$           412,722$          
-                    -                  -                   -                   108                   
-                    -                  3                      -                   3                       

1,056,778         -                  -                   -                   1,056,778         
8,080                59,161             12,004             -                   94,929              

1,294,074         88,563             23,861             17,839             1,564,540         

-                    -                  -                   -                   560,222            
627,602            -                  -                   -                   627,602            

-                    -                  117,316           -                   117,316            

-                    -                  -                   -                   386,018            
-                    -                  -                   126,563           126,563            
-                    (40,031)           -                   -                   (40,031)             

627,602            (40,031)           117,316           126,563           1,777,690         
  

1,921,676$       48,532$           141,177$         144,402$         3,342,230$       

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Community
Motor Fuel Local Fuel Development

Tax Tax Block Grant

REVENUES
Property taxes -$                -$                -$                
Other taxes -                  905,618           -                  
Charges for services -                  -                  -                  
Intergovernmental 1,944,104        -                  456,253           
Other income -                  -                  -                  
Investment income (50)                  -                  -                  

Total revenues 1,944,054        905,618           456,253           

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government -                  -                  -                  
Health and welfare -                  -                  316,166           
Public safety -                  -                  -                  
Public works 731,932           253                  -                  

Capital outlay 1,025,911        -                  140,087           

Total expenditures 1,757,843        253                  456,253           

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES 186,211           905,365           -                  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) -                  (1,066,251)      -                  

Total other financing sources (uses) -                  (1,066,251)      -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 186,211           (160,886)         -                  

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY 1 374,011           546,904           -                  

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 560,222$         386,018$         -$                

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012
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Illinois CTA
Municipal Visitor's Parking Wireless
Retirement Bureau Lot Alarm Total

2,105,104$       -$                -$                 -$                 2,105,104$        
232,472            124,656           -                   -                   1,262,746          

-                    -                  268,485           108,598           377,083             
-                    -                  -                   -                   2,400,357          

15,781              -                  -                   -                   15,781               
127                   -                  (360)                 -                   (283)                   

2,353,484         124,656           268,125           108,598           6,160,788          

800,308            117,567           249,987           29,158             1,197,020          
165,840            -                  -                   -                   482,006             
636,096            -                  -                   -                   636,096             
952,120            -                  -                   -                   1,684,305          

-                    -                  -                   -                   1,165,998          

2,554,364         117,567           249,987           29,158             5,165,425          

(200,880)           7,089               18,138             79,440             995,363             

-                    -                  -                   -                   (1,066,251)         

-                    -                  -                   -                   (1,066,251)         

(200,880)           7,089               18,138             79,440             (70,888)              

828,482            (47,120)           99,178             47,123             1,848,578          

627,602$          (40,031)$         117,316$         126,563$         1,777,690$        

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Budget Budget Actual

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 1,711,670$      1,711,670$      1,944,104$       
Investment income 1,000               1,000               (50)                    

Total revenues 1,712,670        1,712,670        1,944,054         

EXPENDITURES
Current

Public works
Contractual services 781,929           786,911           731,932            

Capital outlay 1,077,800        1,077,800        1,025,911         

Total expenditures 1,859,729        1,864,711        1,757,843         

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (147,059)         (152,041)         186,211            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 61,900             61,900             -                    

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (85,159)$         (90,141)$         186,211            

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 374,011            

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 560,222$          

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Intergovernmental 1,091,240$      1,091,240$       905,618$        

Total revenues 1,091,240       1,091,240         905,618          

EXPENDITURES
Current

Public works
Supplies -                  -                    253                 

Total expenditures -                  -                    253                 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES 1,091,240       1,091,240         905,365          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) (1,311,000)      (1,311,000)        (1,066,251)      

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (219,760)$       (219,760)$         (160,886)         

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 546,904          

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 386,018$        

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

LOCAL FUEL TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Intergovernmental 583,365$         583,365$         456,253$         

Total revenues 583,365           583,365           456,253           

EXPENDITURES
Current

Health and welfare 545,489           545,489           316,166           
Capital outlay -                  -                  140,087           

Total expenditures 545,489           545,489           456,253           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 37,876$           37,876$           -                  

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 -                  

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 -$                

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 2,185,000$         2,185,000$         2,105,104$         
Other taxes 268,938              268,938              232,472              
Other income -                      -                      15,781                

Investment income -                      -                      127                     

Total revenues 2,453,938           2,453,938           2,353,484           

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 854,710              854,710              800,308              
Health and welfare 177,113              177,113              165,840              
Public safety 679,335              679,335              636,096              
Public works 1,016,842           1,016,842           952,120              

Total expenditures 2,728,000           2,728,000           2,554,364           

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (274,062)            (274,062)            (200,880)            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 274,200              274,200              -                      

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 138$                   138$                   (200,880)            

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 828,482              

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 627,602$            

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Other taxes 117,053$         117,053$         124,656$         

Total revenues 117,053           117,053           124,656           

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 117,567           117,567           117,567           

Total expenditures 117,567           117,567           117,567           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (514)  $            (514)  $            7,089               

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY 1 (47,120)           

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 (40,031)$         

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

VISITOR'S BUREAU FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Charges for service 103,020$         103,020$         108,598$         

Total revenues 103,020           103,020           108,598           

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 23,189             23,189             29,158             
Capital outlay 7,700               7,700               -                  

Total expenditures 30,889 30,889 29,158

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 72,131$           72,131$           79,440             

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 47,123             

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 126,563$         

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

WIRELESS ALARM FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (Continued) 
 
Special Service Area # 9 Debt Fund - to accumulate monies for the future payment of 
$1,145,000, 4.36%, March 2009 Special Service Area Note, Due in annual installments through 
March 2019. 
 
2002A General Obligation Refunding Bonds Fund - to accumulate monies for the future 
payment of $7,895,000, 2.0% to 5.0%, December 2002 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
due in annual installments through December 2022. 
 
2002B General Obligation Refunding Bonds Fund - to accumulate monies for the future 
payment of $7,755,000, 2.0% to 4.1%, December 2002 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
due in annual installments through December 2015. 
 
2007 General Obligation Bonds Fund - to accumulate monies for the future payment of 
$12,175,000, 5.375% to 5.650%, June 2007 General Obligation Bonds, due in annual 
installments through December 2026. 
 
2009A General Obligation Refunding Bonds Fund - to accumulate monies for the future 
payment of $21,730,000, 2.0% to 3.5%, Series 2009A General Obligation Refunding Bonds, due 
in annual installments through December 2018. 
 
2009B General Obligation Bonds Fund - to accumulate monies for the future payment of 
$18,420,000, 4.11% to 6.04%, Series 2009B Taxable General Obligation Bonds, due in annual 
installments through December 2029. 
 
2010 General Obligation Refunding Bonds Fund - to accumulate monies for the future 
payment of $14,885,000, 1.00% to 5.00%, Series 2010 Taxable General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, due in annual installments through December 2017. 
 



1991 1994 
Public IEPA IEPA SWANCC SSA # 2
Benefit Notes Notes Debt Debt

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 181$             -$              74,870$         -$              63,960$         
Investments -                -                129,422         -                -                
Receivables, net

Property taxes -                -                78,224          -                -                
Other taxes -                -                -                -                -                
Accrued interest receivable -                -                3                   -                -                

TOTAL ASSETS 181$             -$              282,519$       -$              63,960$         

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
   Accounts payable -$              -$              -$              -$              39,409$         
   Deferred property taxes -                -                76,807          -                -                
   Unearned revenue -                -                -                -                -                

Total liabilities -                -                76,807          -                39,409          

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for debt service 181               -                205,712         -                24,551          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 181$             -$              282,519$       -$              63,960$         

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

April 30, 2012
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2002A 2002B
General General 

Obligation Obligation
SSA # 3 SSA # 4 SSA # 5 SSA # 6 SSA # 8 SSA # 9 Refunding Refunding

Debt Debt Debt Debt Debt Debt Bonds Bonds

2,424$          58,054$         2,821$          34,629$         11,481$         114,807$       99,480$         731,779$       
-                -                -                -                -                -                240,273         -                

-                42,848          2,491            224,132         10,774          222,715         -                46,620          
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                6,316            
-                -                -                -                -                3                   -                1                   

2,424$          100,902$       5,312$          258,761$       22,255$         337,525$       339,753$       784,716$       

2,821$          -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              
-                42,834          2,491            216,341         10,549          221,246         -                45,869          
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

2,821            42,834          2,491            216,341         10,549          221,246         -                45,869          

(397)              58,068          2,821            42,420          11,706          116,279         339,753         738,847         

2,424$          100,902$       5,312$          258,761$       22,255$         337,525$       339,753$       784,716$       

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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2007 2009A 2010
General General 2009B General

Obligation Obligation General Obligation
Refunding Refunding Obligation Refunding

Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1,126,534$      2,847,163$       826,451$          519,633$       6,514,267$        
Investments 54                   6,468               175,900            20,690          572,807             
Receivables, net

Property taxes -                  757,675            -                   184,366         1,569,845          
Other taxes -                  280,293            95,728              -                382,337             
Accrued interest receivable -                  6                      -                   -                13                      

TOTAL ASSETS 1,126,588$      3,891,605$       1,098,079$       724,689$       9,039,269$        

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
   Accounts payable -$                -$                 -$                 -$              42,230$             
   Deferred property taxes -                  746,176            -                   181,742         1,544,055          
   Unearned revenue -                  89,671              31,163              -                120,834             

Total liabilities -                  835,847            31,163              181,742         1,707,119          

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for debt service 1,126,588        3,055,758         1,066,916         542,947         7,332,150          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 1,126,588$      3,891,605$       1,098,079$       724,689$       9,039,269$        

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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1991 1994 
Public IEPA IEPA SWANCC SSA # 2
Benefit Notes Notes Debt Debt

REVENUES
Property taxes -$                -$                 228,652$         -$                 35,534$           
Other taxes -                  -                   -                   -                   -                   
Licenses and permits -                  -                   -                   -                   -                   
Investment income -                  -                   34                    -                   5                      

Total revenues -                  -                   228,686           -                   35,539             

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government -                  -                   -                   85,995             -                   
Debt service

Principal -                  -                   316,057           -                   71,781             
Interest and fiscal charges -                  -                   11,882             -                   2,231               

Total expenditures -                  -                   327,939           85,995             74,012             

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES -                  -                   (99,253)            (85,995)            (38,473)            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                  -                   -                   85,995             -                   
Transfers (out) -                  (355)                 -                   -                   -                   

Total other financing sources (uses) -                  (355)                 -                   85,995             -                   

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -                  (355)                 (99,253)            -                   (38,473)            

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 181                  355                  304,965           -                   63,024             

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 181$                -$                 205,712$         -$                 24,551$           

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

- 117 -



2002A 2002B
General General 

Obligation Obligation
SSA # 3 SSA # 4 SSA # 5 SSA # 6 SSA # 8 SSA # 9 Refunding Refunding

Debt Debt Debt Debt Debt Debt Bonds Bonds

2,608$            92,984$          5,505$            245,100$        24,154$          292,519$        -$                90,871$          
-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  79,671            
-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  196,681          -                  
-                  6                      -                  16                    1                      27                    25                    6                      

2,608               92,990            5,505               245,116          24,155            292,546          196,706          170,548          

-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

4,991               60,568            4,781               166,879          18,976            230,011          115,000          635,000          
154                  3,741               745                  40,531            4,609               92,008            76,306            136,785          

5,145               64,309            5,526               207,410          23,585            322,019          191,306          771,785          

(2,537)             28,681            (21)                  37,706            570                  (29,473)           5,400               (601,237)         

-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  630,027          
-                  (29,200)           -                  (141,000)         -                  (67,500)           -                  -                  

-                  (29,200)           -                  (141,000)         -                  (67,500)           -                  630,027          

(2,537)             (519)                (21)                  (103,294)         570                  (96,973)           5,400               28,790            

2,140               58,587            2,842               145,714          11,136            213,252          334,353          710,057          

(397)$              58,068$          2,821$            42,420$          11,706$          116,279$        339,753$        738,847$        

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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2007 2009A 2010
General General 2009B General

Obligation Obligation General Obligation
Refunding Refunding Obligation Refunding

Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Total

REVENUES
Property taxes -$                1,134,972$     -$                194,029$        2,346,928$     
Other taxes -                  2,247,326       438,253          204,028          2,969,278       
Licenses and permits -                  -                  -                  -                  196,681          
Investment income 6                      1,154               500                  32                    1,812               

Total revenues 6                      3,383,452       438,753          398,089          5,514,699       

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government -                  -                  -                  -                  85,995            
Debt service

Principal 485,000          2,963,712       -                  482,565          5,555,321       
Interest and fiscal charges 647,656          437,858          1,003,045       155,941          2,613,492       

Total expenditures 1,132,656       3,401,570       1,003,045       638,506          8,254,808       

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (1,132,650)      (18,118)           (564,292)         (240,417)         (2,740,109)      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,126,511       35,908            454,000          -                  2,332,441       
Transfers (out) -                  (225,000)         -                  -                  (463,055)         

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,126,511       (189,092)         454,000          -                  1,869,386       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (6,139)             (207,210)         (110,292)         (240,417)         (870,723)         

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 1,132,727       3,262,968       1,177,208       783,364          8,202,873       

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 1,126,588$     3,055,758$     1,066,916$     542,947$        7,332,150$     

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 158,807$        158,807$        228,652$        
Investment income -                 -                 34                   

Total revenues 158,807          158,807          228,686          

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 316,057          316,057          316,057          
Interest and fiscal charges 11,881            11,881            11,882            

Total expenditures 327,938          327,938          327,939          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (169,131)$      (169,131)$      (99,253)          

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 304,965          

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 205,712$        

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

1994 IEPA NOTES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
None -$               -$               -$               

Total revenues -                 -                 -                 

EXPENDITURES
General government

Contractual services 82,834            82,834            85,995            

Total expenditures 82,834            82,834            85,995            

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (82,834)          (82,834)          (85,995)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 82,834            82,834            85,995            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -$               -$               -                 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 -                 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 -$               

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SWANCC DEBT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 73,708$          73,708$          35,534$          
Investment income -                  -                  5                     

Total revenues 73,708            73,708            35,539            

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 71,490            71,490            71,781            
Interest and fiscal charges 2,220              2,220              2,231              

Total expenditures 73,710            73,710            74,012            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2)$                  (2)$                  (38,473)           

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 63,024            

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 24,551$          

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA # 2 DEBT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 5,126$            5,126$            2,608$            

Total revenues 5,126              5,126              2,608              

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 4,972              4,972              4,991              
Interest and fiscal charges 155                 155                 154                 

Total expenditures 5,127              5,127              5,145              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1)$                  (1)$                  (2,537)             

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 2,140              

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 (397)$              

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA # 3 DEBT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 64,310$          64,310$          92,984$          
Investment income -                 -                 6                     

Total revenues 64,310            64,310            92,990            

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 60,576            60,576            60,568            
Interest and fiscal charges 3,735              3,735              3,741              

Total expenditures 64,311            64,311            64,309            

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (1)                   (1)                   28,681            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) -                 -                 (29,200)          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1)$                 (1)$                 (519)               

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 58,587            

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 58,068$          

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA # 4 DEBT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 5,527$            5,527$            5,505$            

Total revenues 5,527              5,527              5,505              

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 4,782              4,782              4,781              
Interest and fiscal charges 745                 745                 745                 

Total expenditures 5,527              5,527              5,526              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -$                -$                (21)                  

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 2,842              

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 2,821$            

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA # 5 DEBT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 207,410$        207,410$        245,100$        
Investment income -                 -                 16                   

Total revenues 207,410          207,410          245,116          

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 166,854          166,854          166,879          
Interest and fiscal charges 40,557            40,557            40,531            

Total expenditures 207,411          207,411          207,410          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (1)                   (1)                   37,706            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) -                 -                 (141,000)        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1)$                 (1)$                 (103,294)        

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 145,714          

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 42,420$          

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA # 6 DEBT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 23,586$          23,586$          24,154$          
Investment income -                  -                  1                     

Total revenues 23,586            23,586            24,155            

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 18,974            18,974            18,976            
Interest and fiscal charges 4,612              4,612              4,609              

Total expenditures 23,586            23,586            23,585            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -$                -$                570                 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 11,136            

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 11,706$          

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA # 8 DEBT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See indepedent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 322,020$        322,020$        292,519$        
Investment income -                  -                  27                   

Total revenues 322,020          322,020          292,546          

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 230,141          230,141          230,011          
Interest and fiscal charges 91,880            91,880            92,008            

Total expenditures 322,021          322,021          322,019          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (1)                    (1)                    (29,473)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) -                  -                  (67,500)           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1)$                  (1)$                  (96,973)           

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 213,252          

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 116,279$        

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA # 9 DEBT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Licenses and permits 196,682$        196,682$        196,681$        
Investment income -                 -                 25                   

Total revenues 196,682          196,682          196,706          

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 115,000          115,000          115,000          
Interest and fiscal charges 76,707            76,707            76,306            

Total expenditures 191,707          191,707          191,306          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 4,975$            4,975$            5,400              

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 334,353          

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 339,753$        

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

2002A GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 94,840$          94,840$          90,871$          
Other taxes 73,811            73,811            79,671            
Investment income -                 -                 6                     

Total revenues 168,651          168,651          170,548          

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 635,000          635,000          635,000          
Interest and fiscal charges 137,185          137,185          136,785          

Total expenditures 772,185          772,185          771,785          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (603,534)        (603,534)        (601,237)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 795,541          795,541          630,027          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 192,007$        192,007$        28,790            

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 710,057          

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 738,847$        

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

2002B GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Investment income -$                 -$                 6$                   

Total revenues -                   -                   6                     

EXPENDITURES
Current

Governmental
Administration 1,000               1,000               -                 

Debt service
Principal 485,000           485,000           485,000          
Interest and fiscal charges 647,657           647,657           647,656          

Total expenditures 1,133,657        1,133,657        1,132,656       

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (1,133,657)       (1,133,657)       (1,132,650)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,132,657        1,132,657        1,126,511       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,000)$            (1,000)$            (6,139)            

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 1,132,727       

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 1,126,588$     

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

2007 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 1,542,799$       1,542,799$       1,134,972$        
Other taxes

Home rule sales tax 550,155            550,155            550,156             
Sales tax 550,155            550,155            550,156             
Telecommunication tax 1,041,269         1,041,269         1,086,653          
Hotel and motel tax 55,750              55,750              60,361               

Investment income -                    -                    1,154                 

Total revenues 3,740,128         3,740,128         3,383,452          

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 3,120,000         3,120,000         2,963,712          
Interest and fiscal charges 483,388            483,388            437,858             

Total expenditures 3,603,388         3,603,388         3,401,570          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES 136,740            136,740            (18,118)              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 45,399              45,399              35,908               
Transfers (out) -                    -                    (225,000)            

Total other financing sources (uses) 45,399              45,399              (189,092)            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 182,139$          182,139$          (207,210)            

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 3,262,968          

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 3,055,758$        

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

2009A GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Other taxes

Telecommunications tax 361,869$        361,869$        438,253$         
Investment income -                 -                 500                  

Total revenues 361,869          361,869          438,753           

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Interest and fiscal charges 1,002,564       1,002,564       1,003,045        

Total expenditures 1,002,564       1,002,564       1,003,045        

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (640,695)        (640,695)        (564,292)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 573,355          573,355          454,000           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (67,340)$        (67,340)$        (110,292)         

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 1,177,208        

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 1,066,916$      

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

2009B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REVENUES
Property taxes 375,771$        375,771$        194,029$         
Other taxes

Sales tax 102,014          102,014          102,014           
Home rule sales tax 102,014          102,014          102,014           

Investment income -                  -                  32                    

Total revenues 579,799          579,799          398,089           

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 530,000          530,000          482,565           
Interest and fiscal charges 171,800          171,800          155,941           

Total expenditures 701,800          701,800          638,506           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (122,001)$       (122,001)$       (240,417)          

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 783,364           

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 542,947$         

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

2010 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
 
 
Capital projects funds are governmental funds used to account for financial resources to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 
 
Centre East Development Fund - to account for expenditures necessary to develop and improve 
the Centre East facility. 
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REVENUES
Other taxes 830,265$        830,265$        820,246$        

Total revenues 830,265          830,265          820,246          

EXPENDITURES
Current

Contractual services 250,000          250,000          516,880          

Total expenditures 250,000          250,000          516,880          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES 580,265          580,265          303,366          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) -                 -                 (286,935)        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 580,265$        580,265$        16,431            

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 194,750          

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 211,181$        

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

CENTRE EAST DEVELOPMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 
 
Enterprise funds are proprietary funds established to account for the financing of self-supporting 
activities of government units which render services on a user-charge basis to the general public. 
 
MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND  
 
Water and Sewer Fund - to account for all activities necessary for the provision of water to the 
residents of the Village, including administration, operations, maintenance, billing and 
collection. 
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WATER AND SEWERAGE
Personal services 876,122$           876,122$           860,387$          

Contractual services
Professional services 262,500             266,825             247,702            
Other contractural services 126,900             136,695             127,621            
Equipment and maintenance services 2,000                 2,000                 1,999                
Construction services 20,000               20,000               19,284              
Insurance 70,000               70,000               70,000              
Communications 3,300                 3,300                 2,694                
Printing and binding 4,900                 4,900                 4,869                
Membership dues 20                       20                       20                     
Travel and meetings 5,400                 5,400                 4,208                
Training 1,500                 2,400                 2,604                

Total contractual services 496,520             511,540             481,001            

Materials and supplies
General equipment parts 3,500                 3,500                 3,587                
Water distribution supply 19,500               19,500               10,741              
Minor equipment and tools 2,000                 2,000                 1,952                
Photographic and drafting 125                    126                    1                       
Clothing, dry goods, notions 6,190                 6,289                 6,132                
Chemicals 3,320                 3,320                 3,224                
Horticulture and landscape 500                    500                    471                   
Energy 175,000             175,000             123,749            
Gasoline 30,319               30,319               41,383              
Books and periodicals 100                    100                    -                    
Construction materials 109,600             109,600             109,784            
Water for resale 3,143,000          3,143,000          2,738,179         

Total materials and supplies 3,493,154          3,493,254          3,039,203         

Other
Administration 1,000,000          1,000,000          1,000,000         
Group insurance 135,460             135,460             139,877            
Employee pensions 152,300             152,300             143,341            

Total other 1,287,760          1,287,760          1,283,218         

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

WATER AND SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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WATER AND SEWERAGE (Continued)
Capital outlay

Nonbuilding improvements 100,000$           100,000$           82,982$            
Photo and precision 7,800                 7,800                 -                    
Water meters -                     -                     136,446            
Other equipment 24,600               24,600               24,332              

Total capital outlay 132,400             132,400             243,760            

Total water and sewerage 6,285,956$        6,301,076$        5,907,569$       

WATER METERS
Personal services 263,586$           263,586$           208,332$          

Contractural services
Professional services 225,000             225,000             225,000            
Repair and maintenance services 15,500               15,500               4,479                
Printing and binding 3,900                 3,900                 3,297                

Total contractural services 244,400             244,400             232,776            

Materials and supplies
General equipment parts 3,150                 3,150                 925                   
Minor equipment and tools 300                    300                    278                   
General office supplies 1,650                 1,860                 512                   
Postage 21,000               21,000               26,240              
Clothing, dry goods, notions 1,600                 1,600                 920                   
Gasoline 2,505                 2,505                 3,419                

Total materials and supplies 30,205               30,415               32,294              

Other  
Group insurance 35,790               35,790               29,905              
Employee pensions 45,900               45,900               34,349              
Other  -                     -                     89                     

Total other 81,690               81,690               64,343              

Total water meters 619,881$           620,091$           537,745$          

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

WATER AND SEWER FUND

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

WATER AND SEWER FUND

FLOOD CONTROL
Personal services 262,792$           262,792$           251,685$          

Contractual services
Other contractual service 112,500             115,697             96,251              
Communications -                     -                     2,515                
Photography and drafting 100                    100                    -                    
Training 1,000                 1,300                 300                   

Total contractural services 113,600             117,097             99,066              

Materials and supplies
General equipment parts 5,500                 5,500                 3,982                
Minor equipment and tools 1,200                 1,200                 540                   
Photographic and drafting supplies 200                    201                    1                       
Clothing, dry goods, notions 2,360                 2,558                 2,178                
Gasoline 3,520                 3,520                 4,805                
Construction materials 44,600               48,179               43,134              

Total materials and supplies 57,380               61,158               54,640              

Other  
Group insurance 61,560               61,560               58,904              
Employee pensions 45,700               45,700               41,222              
Other  -                     -                     (1,530)               

Total other 107,260             107,260             98,596              

Capital outlay
Other equipment 4,000                 4,000                 3,664                

Total flood control 545,032$           552,307$           507,651$          

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents 33,577$              175,699$            209,276$            
Investments

U.S. Government obligations 1,967,278           8,923,628           10,890,906         
U.S. Government agency obligations 17,490,438         3,986,410           21,476,848         
Equity mutual funds 25,613,817         498,883              26,112,700         
Common stock 11,315,404         21,883,479         33,198,883         
IMET 722,585              2,324,908           3,047,493           
Debt mutual funds -                      23,538,186         23,538,186         
Money market funds 2,058,004           3,761,398           5,819,402           
Municipal bonds 3,521,734           -                      3,521,734           
Corporate bonds 10,853,344         -                      10,853,344         

Accrued interest receivable 325,255              109,596              434,851              
Due from governmental funds 123,866              220,182              344,048              

Total assets 74,025,302         65,422,369         139,447,671       

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,927                  14,589                19,516                
Due to governmental funds 19,592                26,929                46,521                

Total liabilities 24,519                41,518                66,037                

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR 
  PENSION BENEFITS 74,000,783$       65,380,851$       139,381,634$     

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer 1,563,033$     2,731,012$     4,294,045$       
Participants 930,449          831,485          1,761,934         

Total contributions 2,493,482       3,562,497       6,055,979         

INVESTMENT INCOME
Net appreciation in fair value of
 investments 629,723          2,841,314       3,471,037         
Investment income 2,068,727       1,300,597       3,369,324         

Subtotal 2,698,450       4,141,911       6,840,361         

Less investment expense (14,328)           (114,269)         (128,597)           

Net investment income 2,684,122       4,027,642       6,711,764         

Total additions 5,177,604       7,590,139       12,767,743       

DEDUCTIONS
Administrative 200,651          55,013            255,664            
Pension benefits and refunds 5,650,041       5,328,847       10,978,888       

Total deductions 5,850,692       5,383,860       11,234,552       

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) (673,088)         2,206,279       1,533,191         

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR 
  PENSION BENEFITS

May 1 74,673,871     63,174,572     137,848,443     

April 30 74,000,783$   65,380,851$   139,381,634$   

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer 1,582,524$    1,582,524$    1,563,033$       
Participants 890,443         890,443         930,449            

Total contributions 2,472,967      2,472,967      2,493,482         

INVESTMENT INCOME
Net appreciation in fair value of
 investments -                 -                 629,723            
Investment income 5,584,694      5,584,694      2,068,727         

Subtotal 5,584,694      5,584,694      2,698,450         

Less investment expense -                 -                 (14,328)             

Net investment income 5,584,694      5,584,694      2,684,122         

Total additions 8,057,661      8,057,661      5,177,604         

DEDUCTIONS
Administrative 67,079           67,079           200,651            
Pension benefits and refunds 5,569,619      5,569,619      5,650,041         

Total deductions 5,636,698      5,636,698      5,850,692         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 2,420,963$    2,420,963$    (673,088)           

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR 
  PENSION BENEFITS

May 1 74,673,871       

April 30 74,000,783$     

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

POLICE PENSION FUND

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer 2,771,501$     2,771,501$     2,731,012$     
Participants 846,079          846,079          831,485          

Total contributions 3,617,580       3,617,580       3,562,497       

INVESTMENT INCOME
Net appreciation in fair value of 
  investments -                  -                  2,841,314       
Investment income 4,772,005       4,772,005       1,300,597       

Subtotal 4,772,005       4,772,005       4,141,911       

Less investment expense -                  -                  (114,269)         

Net investment income 4,772,005       4,772,005       4,027,642       

Total additions 8,389,585       8,389,585       7,590,139       

DEDUCTIONS
Administrative 63,591            63,591            55,013            
Pension benefits and refunds 5,484,560       5,484,560       5,328,847       

Total deductions 5,548,151       5,548,151       5,383,860       

NET INCREASE 2,841,434$     2,841,434$     2,206,279       

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR 
  PENSION BENEFITS

May 1 63,174,572     

April 30 65,380,851$   

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Special Special Escrow
Assessment # 1 Assessment # 2 Deposit Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 491,000$        275,330$              229,221$              995,551$         
Investments -                  -                       354,366                354,366           

TOTAL ASSETS 491,000$        275,330$              583,587$              1,349,917$      

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                -$                     14,350$                14,350$           
Deposits payable -                  -                       565,114                565,114           
Other payables 491,000          275,330                4,123                    770,453           

TOTAL LIABILITIES 491,000$        275,330$              583,587$              1,349,917$      

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

April 30, 2012

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Balances Balances
May 1 Additions Deletions April 30 

 ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 491,000$          -$                 -$                 491,000$          

TOTAL ASSETS 491,000$          -$                 -$                 491,000$          

LIABILITIES

Other payables 491,000$          -$                 -$                 491,000$          

TOTAL LIABILITIES 491,000$          -$                 -$                 491,000$          

 ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 275,160$          170$                 -$                 275,330$          

TOTAL ASSETS 275,160$          170$                 -$                 275,330$          

LIABILITIES

Other payables 275,160$          170$                 -$                 275,330$          

TOTAL LIABILITIES 275,160$          170$                 -$                 275,330$          

 ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 204,327$          562,631$          537,737$          229,221$          
Investments 353,278            708,289            707,201            354,366            

TOTAL ASSETS 557,605$          1,270,920$       1,244,938$       583,587$          

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 6,600$              460,447$          452,697$          14,350$            
Deposits payable 537,632            559,831            532,349            565,114            
Other payables 13,373              2,800                12,050              4,123                

TOTAL LIABILITIES 557,605$          1,023,078$       997,096$          583,587$          

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT # 2 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT # 1 

ESCROW DEPOSIT

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Balances Balances
May 1 Additions Deletions April 30 

 ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 970,487$          562,801$          537,737$          995,551$          
Investments 353,278            708,289            707,201            354,366            

TOTAL ASSETS 1,323,765$       1,271,090$       1,244,938$       1,349,917$       

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 6,600$              460,447$          452,697$          14,350$            
Deposits payable 537,632            559,831            532,349            565,114            
Other Payables 779,533            2,970                12,050              770,453            

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,323,765$       1,023,248$       997,096$          1,349,917$       

ALL FUNDS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Fiscal Year 2004 2005 2006 2007 * 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 45,463,695$     55,237,380$     64,414,350$     62,592,695$     100,167,169$   105,390,481$        108,142,967$   120,700,803$   127,007,975$   
Restricted 4,132,896         3,111,928         2,208,302         11,448,593       18,049,222       23,341,980            22,589,827       19,931,143       15,735,562       
Unrestricted 72,463,189       75,466,470       76,987,696       84,322,966       35,298,355       20,533,585            22,712,494       14,050,052       15,681,005       

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 122,059,780$   133,815,778$   143,610,348$   158,364,254$   153,514,746$   149,266,046$        153,445,288$   154,681,998$   158,424,542$   

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 16,687,380$     16,956,340$     19,119,973$     17,901,005$     19,018,620$     18,893,221$          18,632,182$     19,051,206$     22,060,945$     
Unrestricted 3,603,357         3,027,741         1,262,880         3,556,055         2,917,615         3,381,994              5,512,975         6,895,962         6,505,880         

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 20,290,737$     19,984,081$     20,382,853$     21,457,060$     21,936,235$     22,275,215$          24,145,157$     25,947,168$     28,566,825$     

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 62,151,075$     72,193,720$     83,534,323$     80,493,700$     119,185,789$   124,283,702$        126,775,149$   139,752,009$   149,068,920$   
Restricted 4,132,896         3,111,928         2,208,302         11,448,593       18,049,222       23,341,980            22,589,827       19,931,143       15,735,562       
Unrestricted 76,066,546       78,494,211       78,250,576       87,879,021       38,215,970       23,915,579            28,225,469       20,946,014       22,186,885       

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 142,350,517$   153,799,859$   163,993,201$   179,821,314$   175,450,981$   171,541,261$        177,590,445$   180,629,166$   186,991,367$   

Source:
The Village of Skokie's  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

 
* Restated
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Fiscal Year 2004 2005 2006 2007 * 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

EXPENSES
Governmental activities

General government 11,354,687$      11,636,929$      13,274,177$      14,881,777$      14,658,764$      15,525,954$      14,578,398$      16,327,861$      17,054,841$      
Health and welfare 1,373,335          1,554,928          1,656,957          1,676,824          1,559,003          1,692,874          1,884,686          2,174,274          1,679,507          
Public safety 17,850,705        21,312,734        23,963,564        24,566,626        20,338,845        27,774,775        27,686,386        34,598,817        30,785,222        
Public works 20,832,510        16,801,493        15,917,026        18,876,167        34,776,913        23,042,896        19,081,862        21,719,256        34,095,545        
Culture and recreation 328,808             494,552             467,845             436,497             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest on long-term debt 3,526,912          2,747,228          2,578,641          1,643,125          1,880,064          1,997,772          2,590,035          2,611,848          2,499,831          

Total governmental activities expenses 55,266,957        54,547,864        57,858,210        62,081,016        73,213,589        70,034,271        65,821,367        77,432,056        86,114,946        

Business-type activities
Water and sewer and parking 6,489,170          6,085,225          6,745,048          6,672,580          7,973,170          7,748,526          7,578,156          8,444,713          7,784,485          

Total business-type activities expenses 6,489,170          6,085,225          6,745,048          6,672,580          7,973,170          7,748,526          7,578,156          8,444,713          7,784,485          

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT EXPENSES 61,756,127$      60,633,089$      64,603,258$      68,753,596$      81,186,759$      77,782,797$      73,399,523$      85,876,769$      93,899,431$      

PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmental activities

Charges for services
General government 3,963,465$        4,168,388$        4,242,856$        6,108,721$        6,814,013$        6,397,654$        6,874,613$        6,918,416$        7,130,082$        
Health and welfare 75,197               67,924               127,299             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Public safety 2,098,707          1,849,501          2,387,282          1,121,180          567,090             802,188             729,683             705,956             624,057             
Public works 421,384             301,484             264,445             -                     -                     -                     200,000             163                    -                     
Operating grants and contributions 5,221,639          6,727,284          4,258,566          5,029,469          3,594,927          3,382,908          3,723,535          3,539,299          3,720,200          
Capital grants and contributions -                     -                     -                     -                     1,925,203          1,416,064          2,290,871          6,467,171          13,645,800        

Total governmental activities program revenues 11,780,392        13,114,581        11,280,448        12,259,370        12,901,233        11,998,814        13,818,702        17,631,005        25,120,139        

Business-type activities
Charges for services - water and sewer 7,554,181          7,298,663          8,476,696          9,075,076          8,815,437          8,918,992          9,576,948          9,906,429          10,210,085        
Operating grants and contributions -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Capital grants and contributions -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total business-type activities program revenues 7,554,181          7,298,663          8,476,696          9,075,076          8,815,437          8,918,992          9,576,948          9,906,429          10,210,085        

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
  PROGRAM REVENUES 19,334,573$      20,413,244$      19,757,144$      21,334,446$      21,716,670$      20,917,806$      23,395,650$      27,537,434$      35,330,224$      

NET REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Governmental activities (43,486,565)$    (41,433,283)$    (46,577,762)$    (49,821,646)$    (60,312,356)$    (58,035,457)$    (52,002,665)$    (59,801,051)$    (60,994,807)$    
Business-type activities 1,065,011          1,213,438          1,731,648          2,402,496          842,267             1,170,466          1,998,792          1,461,716          2,425,600          

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNEMENT
  NET REVENUE (EXPENSE) (42,421,554)$    (40,219,845)$    (44,846,114)$    (47,419,150)$    (59,470,089)$    (56,864,991)$    (50,003,873)$    (58,339,335)$    (58,569,207)$    

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Last Nine Fiscal Years
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Fiscal Year 2004 2005 2006 2007 * 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER
  CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental activities
Taxes

Property taxes 18,072,997$      17,522,297$      18,262,705$      18,466,317$      16,410,719$      17,974,164$      21,132,452$      20,370,681$      21,189,803$      
Replacement 511,882             599,609             898,270             1,293,417          1,393,845          1,276,243          1,129,667          1,255,680          1,132,759          
Sales and use 19,923,399        22,872,110        23,098,131        23,330,131        23,026,242        21,541,667        21,491,429        22,999,930        26,327,248        
Hotel/motel 958,374             995,741             968,589             923,396             1,274,676          1,070,377          928,638             1,022,917          1,105,978          
Telecommunications tax 1,920,600          1,979,822          1,910,023          1,878,007          2,503,737          3,706,615          3,751,307          3,455,213          3,578,374          
Real estate transfer tax 1,745,727          2,058,923          2,191,515          2,586,557          1,487,796          791,962             640,269             542,805             685,831             
Utility tax -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     4,251,738          4,028,528          
Other taxes -                     -                     -                     -                     71,454               63,697               1,001,058          1,038,353          1,034,190          

Income taxes 4,437,574          4,414,143          5,673,555          6,220,081          6,862,701          5,578,777          4,885,830          4,939,032          4,769,895          
Gain on sale of capital assets 1,091,467          -                     -                     -                     49,046               229,726             602,695             749,665             -                     
Transfers 1,659,093          1,261,543          1,368,910          2,219,794          419,394             851,485             131,242             147,328             299,522             
Investment earnings 388,600             611,770             1,440,898          1,556,216          1,963,238          702,044             240,183             102,509             49,898               
Miscellaneous 248,338             873,323             559,736             1,355,354          -                     -                     247,137             161,910             246,244             

Total governmental activities 50,958,051        53,189,281        56,372,332        59,829,270        55,462,848        53,786,757        56,181,907        61,037,761        64,448,270        

Business-type activities
Utility taxes -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     483,982             494,673             
Investment earnings 10,669               18,139               6,776                 27,065               56,302               19,999               2,392                 3,641                 (1,094)                
Transfers (1,659,093)         (1,544,395)         (1,368,910)         -                     (419,394)            (851,485)            (131,242)            (147,328)            (299,522)            
Miscellaneous 41,779               6,162                 29,258               (1,355,354)         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total business-type activities (1,606,645)         (1,520,094)         (1,332,876)         (1,328,289)         (363,092)            (831,486)            (128,850)            340,295             194,057             

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (49,351,406)$    (51,669,187)$    (55,039,456)$    (58,500,981)$    (55,099,756)$    (52,955,271)$    (56,053,057)$    (61,378,056)$    (64,642,327)$    

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Governmental activities 7,471,486$        11,755,998$      9,794,570$        10,007,624$      (4,849,508)$      (4,248,700)$      4,179,242$        1,236,710$        3,453,463$        
Business-type activities (541,634)            (306,656)            398,772             1,074,207          479,175             338,980             1,869,942          1,802,011          2,619,657          

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
  CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 6,929,852$        11,449,342$      10,193,342$      11,081,831$      (4,370,333)$      (3,909,720)$      6,049,184$        3,038,721$        6,073,120$        

Source:
The Village of Skokie's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

* Restated

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (Continued)
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Fiscal Year 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

FUNCTION/PROGRAM
Governmental activities

Charges for services
General government 3,963,465$        4,168,388$        4,242,856$        6,108,721$        6,814,013$        6,397,654$        6,874,613$        6,918,416$        7,130,082$        
Health and welfare 75,197                67,924                127,299              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public safety 2,098,707           1,849,501           2,387,282           1,121,180           567,090              802,188              729,683              705,956              624,057              
Public works 421,384              301,484              264,445              -                      -                      -                      200,000              163                     -                      

Total charges for service 6,558,753           6,387,297           7,021,882           7,229,901           7,381,103           7,199,842           7,804,296           7,624,535           7,754,139           

Operating grants and contributions
General government -                      -                      -                      -                      30,252                732,206              960,226              760,181              784,457              
Health and welfare -                      -                      -                      -                      795,822              -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public safety -                      -                      -                      -                      2,671,816           723,618              600,759              628,834              647,532              
Public works 5,221,639           6,727,284           4,258,566           5,029,469           97,037                1,927,084           2,162,550           2,150,284           1,937,551           
Interest -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      350,660              

Total operating grants and contributions 5,221,639           6,727,284           4,258,566           5,029,469           3,594,927           3,382,908           3,723,535           3,539,299           3,720,200           

Capital grants and contributions
General government -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      646,595              1,246,076           1,228,440           319,826              
Health and welfare -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public safety -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Public works -                      -                      -                      -                      1,925,203           769,469              1,044,795           5,238,731           13,325,974        

Total capital grants and contributions -                      -                      -                      -                      1,925,203           1,416,064           2,290,871           6,467,171           13,645,800        

Total governmental activities 11,780,392        13,114,581        11,280,448        12,259,370        12,901,233        11,998,814        13,818,702        17,631,005        25,120,139        

Business-type activities
Water and sewer and parking 7,554,181           7,298,663           8,476,696           9,075,076           8,815,437           8,918,992           9,576,948           9,906,429           10,210,085        

Total business-type activities 7,554,181           7,298,663           8,476,696           9,075,076           8,815,437           8,918,992           9,576,948           9,906,429           10,210,085        

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 19,334,573$      20,413,244$      19,757,144$      21,334,446$      21,716,670$      20,917,806$      23,395,650$      27,537,434$      35,330,224$      

Note:
The statement of activities provides a breakdown of charges for services, grants and contributions.

Source:
The Village of Skokie's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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Fiscal Year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012*

GENERAL FUND
Reserved 417,653$        692,049$        1,059,132$     970,134$        816,254$        499,433$        473,902$        959,578$        2,513,936$     -$                
Unreserved 10,543,968     12,779,464     14,740,122     15,530,856     16,321,329     14,407,151     11,320,554     11,040,458     7,521,944       -                  
Nonspendable in form

Advances -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  1,550,000       
Inventories -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  44,357            
Notes receivable -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  435,000          

Restricted
Public safety -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  497,049          
Foreign fire insurance -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  196,010          

Unrestricted
Committed -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Assigned -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Unassigned (deficit) -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  8,038,676       

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 10,961,621$   13,471,513$   15,799,254$   16,500,990$   17,137,583$   14,906,584$   11,794,456$   12,000,036$   10,035,880$   10,761,092$   

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL
  FUNDS

Reserved -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                17,638,795$   17,746,353$   21,667,689$   21,105,464$   -$                
Unreserved, reported in

Special revenue funds 19,593,963     18,226,629     17,242,555     16,060,374     15,306,793     8,654,715       4,789,038       185,436          582,895          -                  
Capital projects funds 12,548,242     7,883,652       7,333,243       8,811,592       9,928,904       5,738,825       4,618,037       8,916,618       (2,644,848)      -                  
Debt service funds 8,415,104       8,340,128       7,351,044       6,916,001       6,631,989       -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Nonspendable in form
Prepaid items -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  544,457          
Advances -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  2,000,000       

Restricted
Economic development -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  6,405,213       
Highways and streets -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  560,222          
Employee benefits -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  627,602          
Commuter parking lot -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  117,316          
Debt service -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  7,332,150       

Last Ten Fiscal Years

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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Fiscal Year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012*

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL 
  FUNDS (Continued)

Unrestricted
Committed

Highways and streets -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                386,018$        
Public safety -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  126,563          
Capital projects -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  211,181          

Assigned
Capital projects -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  2,519,480       

Unassigned (deficit) -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (4,289,347)      

TOTAL ALL OTHER 
  GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 40,557,309$   34,450,409$   31,926,842$   31,787,967$   31,867,686$   32,032,335$   27,153,428$   30,769,743$   19,043,511$   16,540,855$   

TOTAL ALL GOVERNMENTAL 
  FUNDS 51,518,930$   47,921,922$   47,726,096$   48,288,957$   49,005,269$   46,938,919$   38,947,884$   42,769,779$   29,079,391$   27,301,947$   

* The Village implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, in fiscal year 2012.

Source:
The Village of Skokie's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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Fiscal Year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

REVENUES
Property taxes 17,073,398$   17,771,765$   17,654,436$   17,672,077$   18,380,077$   16,410,719$   17,974,164$   21,132,452$   20,370,681$   21,189,803$   
Other taxes 28,556,304     29,124,598     33,068,472     34,283,954     34,769,841     36,400,966     34,268,818     33,749,585     39,505,668     37,827,219     
Licenses and permits 2,154,343       2,900,353       3,110,980       3,458,242       5,248,197       3,095,578       2,493,421       2,922,271       3,082,453       3,148,219       
Intergovernmental 3,361,938       5,221,639       6,727,284       4,258,566       5,029,469       1,691,572       4,029,461       5,032,108       9,297,775       21,433,725     
Charges for services 1,633,554       2,198,250       2,401,803       2,578,130       2,726,182       4,985,499       3,004,541       2,944,107       3,024,671       3,100,859       
Fines 992,913           956,261           874,514           985,510           1,121,180       1,157,298       1,460,769       1,567,322       1,339,450       1,312,159       
Interest income 990,313           379,770           611,770           1,440,898       2,164,258       1,931,270       702,048           240,183           102,509           49,898             
Other income 487,352           752,224           838,814           649,380           1,459,726       499,709           944,324           1,114,225       852,129           401,771           

Total revenues 55,250,115     59,304,860     65,288,073     65,326,757     70,898,930     66,172,611     64,877,546     68,702,253     77,575,336     88,463,653     

EXPENDITURES
General government 10,133,824     10,702,347     10,899,870     12,288,130     13,479,968     13,381,078     15,257,749     13,502,936     15,205,407     14,231,343     
Health and welfare 1,340,403       1,342,094       1,552,103       1,656,957       1,676,824       1,554,279       1,709,773       1,871,162       2,172,013       1,680,504       
Public safety 19,780,688     20,834,187     22,024,740     23,264,232     24,743,951     26,137,686     26,760,621     26,304,265     29,806,963     29,452,103     
Public works 10,116,415     10,936,892     11,481,431     11,691,008     12,565,744     22,037,673     12,705,774     11,844,488     11,303,463     12,430,763     
Pension contributions 1,198,253       -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Capital outlay 11,113,715     12,487,602     11,465,622     8,056,106       9,864,215       12,385,803     11,703,538     31,919,761     24,587,213     25,010,188     
Debt service

Principal retirement 5,043,640       5,669,493       5,751,010       5,860,595       5,895,432       4,636,962       4,874,248       4,201,478       5,696,525       5,555,321       
Interest and fiscal charges 3,590,214       3,088,701       2,849,677       2,646,619       2,459,586       1,886,191       2,122,066       2,280,693       2,806,443       2,613,492       
Bond issuance costs -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  125,043           -                  317,113           -                  -                  

Total expenditures 62,317,152     65,061,316     66,024,453     65,463,647     70,685,720     82,144,715     75,133,769     92,241,896     91,578,027     90,973,714     

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
  OVER EXPENDITURES (7,067,037)      (5,756,456)      (736,380)         (136,890)         213,210           (15,972,104)    (10,256,223)    (23,539,643)    (14,002,691)    (2,510,061)      

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Fiscal Year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from borrowing 16,190,000$   7,439,647$     45,400$           -$                -$                14,133,800$   1,145,000$     1,475,000$     -$                -$                
Issuance of general obligation bonds -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  18,420,000     -                  -                  
Issuance of refunding bonds -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  20,098,412     3,924,255       -                  
Bond premium 566,732           458,793           -                  
Bond discount -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (38,207)           -                  -                  -                  -                  
Proceeds from capital lease -                  -                  -                  -                  151,608           -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 165,055           1,183,392       209,950           119,048           -                  131,309           268,703           602,695           749,665           144,014           
Payments to escrow agent (13,055,000)    (7,331,394)      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (13,932,543)    (4,341,689)      -                  
Settlement of liability -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Transfers in 11,744,311     14,043,005     12,186,636     12,478,266     12,860,182     8,195,060       10,065,622     18,045,537     8,024,827       16,333,156     
Transfers (out) (10,432,974)    (13,425,029)    (11,901,432)    (11,897,563)    (12,508,688)    (7,775,666)      (9,214,137)      (17,914,295)    (7,877,499)      (16,033,634)    

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,611,392       1,909,621       540,554           699,751           503,102           14,646,296     2,265,188       27,361,538     938,352           443,536           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (2,455,645)$    (3,846,835)$    (195,826)$       562,861$        716,312$        (1,325,808)$    (7,991,035)$    3,821,895$     (13,064,339)$  (2,066,525)$    

DEBT SERVICE AS A PERCENT OF
  NONCAPITAL EXPENDITURES 16.9% 16.7% 15.8% 14.8% 13.7% 8.1% 9.8% 9.9% 10.6% 9.5%

Source:
The Village of Skokie's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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Fiscal Income/ Hotel/ Telecom- Real Estate Local Utility
Year Property Replacement Sales Use Motel munication Transfer Fuel Tax (Local) Total

2003 17,073,398$  531,159$       19,143,116$  4,696,104$    976,153$       1,711,194$    1,625,515$    -$               -$               45,756,639$    

2004 18,072,997    511,882         19,923,399    4,437,574      958,374         1,920,600      1,745,727      -                 -                 47,570,553      

2005 17,522,297    599,609         22,872,110    4,414,143      995,741         1,979,822      2,058,923      -                 -                 50,442,645      

2006 18,262,705    898,270         23,098,131    5,673,555      968,589         1,910,023      2,191,515      -                 -                 53,002,788      

2007 18,466,317    1,293,417      23,330,131    6,220,081      923,396         1,878,007      2,586,557      -                 -                 54,697,906      

2008 16,410,719    1,393,845      23,026,242    6,862,701      1,274,676      2,503,737      1,487,796      -                 -                 52,959,716      

2009 17,974,164    1,276,243      21,541,667    5,578,777      1,070,377      3,706,615      791,962         -                 -                 51,939,805      

2010 21,132,452    1,129,667      20,642,989    5,644,595      928,638         3,794,335      640,269         969,092         -                 54,882,037      

2011 20,370,681    1,255,680      22,095,373    5,843,589      1,022,917      3,455,213      542,805         1,038,353      4,251,738      59,876,349      

2012 21,189,803    1,132,759      25,382,106    5,715,037      1,105,978      3,578,374      685,831         1,034,190      4,028,528      63,852,606      

Source:
The Village of Skokie's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Total Total Estimated
Taxable Direct Actual

Fiscal Unimproved Residential Non- Commercial Industrial Assessed Tax Taxable
Year Property Property Profit Property Property Other Value (a) Rate (b) Value

2003 14,796$           1,054,428$      14,795$           205,338$         675,332$         -$                 1,964,689$        0.766                5,894,067$        

2004 13,526             1,048,074        14,699             198,159           657,441           -                   1,931,899          0.779                5,795,697          

2005 22,200             1,361,337        14,285             206,178           665,740           487                  2,270,227          0.663                6,810,681          

2006 22,135             1,471,573        15,328             217,785           722,055           1,219               2,450,095          0.631                7,350,285          

2007 17,620             1,471,642        13,980             210,832           721,912           1,215               2,437,201          0.635                7,311,603          

2008 17,382             1,922,876        16,624             245,683           791,385           1,209               2,995,159          0.517                8,985,477          

2009 17,157             2,049,967        19,765             265,763           846,084           3,267               3,202,002          0.483                9,606,009          

2010 8,563               2,075,974        19,700             242,151           763,016           4,227               3,113,631          0.497                9,340,893          

2011 9,060               1,758,895        22,812             248,056           825,802           4,939               2,869,564          0.539                8,608,692          

2012 9,690               1,592,117        19,632             209,931           725,464           4,897               2,561,731          0.604                7,685,193          

Source:
Cook County Assessor's Office.

Note:

(a) County deducts the tax-exempt property from each property category before reporting this data.
(b) Based on Average Tax Rate in the Village of Skokie

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Property in the Village of Skokie is reassessed on a triennial basis.  Property is assessed at 33.33% of estimated actual value. Tax rates are per $100 of equalized assessed value.

(In Thousands of Dollars Except the Total Direct Tax Rate)
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General Metropolitan
Village Obligation Skokie Skokie Water Cook Average Average Oakton Other 

Fiscal Basic Debt Total Public Park Cook Reclamation County Grade High Community Minor 
Year Rate Service Direct Library District County District Health School (b) School (c) College Districts

2003 0.611              0.155              0.766              0.410              0.419              0.534              0.371              0.156              2.819              2.063              0.179              0.112              

2004 0.629              0.150              0.779              0.440              0.456              0.489              0.361              0.141              3.101              2.267              0.186              0.137              

2005 0.539              0.124              0.663              0.401              0.437              0.471              0.347              0.122              2.772              2.046              0.161              0.102              

2006 0.523              0.108              0.631              0.404              0.407              0.421              0.315              0.112              2.815              2.015              0.158              0.118              

2007 0.552              0.083              0.635              0.435              0.436              0.397              0.284              0.103              2.991              2.237              0.166              0.105              

2008 0.451              0.066              0.517              0.375              0.375              0.353              0.263              0.093              2.563              1.932              0.141              0.103              

2009 0.439              0.044              0.483              0.369              0.386              0.329              0.252              0.086              2.543              1.921              0.140              0.089              

2010 0.450              0.046              0.497              0.390              0.383              0.310              0.261              0.084              2.670              1.942              0.140              0.110              

2011 0.498              0.041              0.539              0.432              0.423              0.341              0.274              0.082              3.017              2.179              0.016              0.096              

2012 0.519              0.085              0.604              0.489              0.476              0.384              0.320              0.078              3.361              2.483              0.196              0.135              

Source:
Cook County Tax Extension Office.

Note:
TheVillage'sbasicanddebtserviceratesaretheresultof acalculationperformedby theCookCountyTreasurer'sOffice. Thetax levy thatformsthebasisfor thetaxratesis basedonanannualvoteof theVillage Board
and the enabling ordinances for debt service which specifies the annual required debt levy amount.

(a) Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within the Village of Skokie.
(b) There are six elementary schools districts within the Village of Skokie.  The rate shown is an arithmetic average of the six districts.  The individual school districts are 65, 68, 69, 72, 73 and 73.5.
(c) There are two high school districts within the Village of Skokie.  The rate shown is an arithmetic average of the two districts.  The individual high school districts are 202 and 219.

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Rate per $100 of Assessed Value)

Village Direct Rates Overlapping Rates (a)
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Percentage of Percentage of
Total Village Total Village

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

Old Orchard Shopping Center 165,009,641$      1 6.44% 105,689,884$      1 5.81%
Village Crossing (Hamilton Partners) 44,541,598          2 1.74% 29,447,037          3 1.62%
Forest City 40,666,706          3 1.59%
Zeller Realty Group 28,576,830          4 1.12%
Inland Realty Group 23,777,532          5 0.93%
Walton Street Capital 22,309,479          6 0.87%
CFO2 Skokie 21,324,307          7 0.83%
Realty Assoc FND Hiffman 16,378,941          8 0.64%
Fel-Pro Realty Corp./Federal Mogul 14,159,891          9 0.55% 27,236,402          4 1.50%
NorthShore Health 13,049,441          10 0.51%
Pharmacia -                       - - 60,905,442          2 3.35%
First American Bank -                       - - 18,910,199          5 1.04%
Mad & Getz -                       - - 17,507,060          6 0.96%
Thi Skokie Limited Partnership -                       - - 14,614,102          7 0.80%
Federal Mogul -                       - - 14,385,393          8 0.79%
Bloomingdales -                       - - 13,165,860          9 0.72%
Nordstrom -                       - - 13,118,458          10 0.72%

TOTAL 389,794,366$      15.22% 314,979,837$      17.31%

TOTAL ASSESSED VALUATION 2,561,731,480$   1,817,631,588$   

Source:
Cook County Assessor's Office

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2012 2003
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Tax Percent of
Levy Equalized Total Tax Collections Levy Collected Collections Total Tax Percent of
Year Assessed Val. Levy Extended in Fiscal Year in Fiscal Year Subssequent Years Collections Levy Collected

2002 1,964,684,619$    23,104,691$      11,500,104$      49.77% 11,562,789$         23,062,893$      99.82%

2003 1,931,894,544      23,549,794        11,922,419        50.63% 11,763,120           23,685,539        100.58%

2004 2,270,230,337      24,123,839        12,402,803        51.41% 11,961,722           24,364,525        101.00%

2005 2,450,095,765      25,354,085        12,051,450        47.53% 13,277,796           25,329,246        99.90%

2006 2,437,203,337      26,047,346        12,798,797        49.14% 13,194,044           25,992,841        99.79%

2007 2,995,160,921      26,682,785        12,922,671        48.43% 13,688,900           26,611,571        99.73%

2008 3,202,002,087      27,260,206        12,053,048        44.21% 14,702,878           26,755,926        98.15%

2009 3,113,630,617      27,597,711        13,942,730        50.52% 13,616,906           27,225,823        98.65%

2010 2,869,566,995      27,840,531        13,948,435        50.10% 13,651,059           13,948,435        50.10%

     2011 (1) 2,561,731,480      27,988,550        14,207,260        50.76% -                        14,402,076        50.76%

Notes:
(1)  Tax levy still in collection

Source:
Office of the County Clerk

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Levy Years
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State of Illinois Fiscal Year 2002 2003 2004 (b) 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

General merchandise 3,476$       3,433$       3,953$       2,968$       3,894$       3,133$       2,977$       2,768$       2,868$       3,005$       
Food 1,148         1,137         1,324         1,332         1,337         1,392         1,429         1,304         1,241         1,159         
Drinking and eating places 1,788         1,850         2,337         2,317         2,498         2,808         2,831         2,788         2,805         2,878         
Apparel 3,203         3,249         3,941         4,189         4,466         4,404         4,368         3,897         4,132         4,286         
Furniture 2,404         2,459         2,910         2,976         2,870         2,946         2,808         2,211         2,204         2,450         
Lumber, hardware 563            360            443            516            590            473            397            260            217            208            
Automotive and filling stations 2,170         2,190         2,250         2,389         2,582         2,377         2,438         1,943         2,301         2,916         
Drugs, retail 2,494         2,610         3,066         3,176         3,460         3,353         3,423         3,210         2,989         3,014         
Agricultural and all other 1,537         1,302         1,569         1,731         1,775         1,900         1,801         1,653         1,884         1,980         
Manufacturing 263            352            294            352            338            327            317            304            321            350            

TOTAL 19,046$     18,942$     22,087$     21,946$     23,810$     23,113$     22,789$     20,338$     20,962$     22,246$     

AGGREGATE VILLAGE 
  SALES TAX RATE 1.75% 1.75% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

Source:
Illinois Department of Revenue

Notes:
Retail sales tax information is not available on the Village's fiscal year basis. 

(b)  The Village of Skokie increased its Home Rule Sales Tax effective January 1, 2004 increasing it from .75% to 1.00%.
(a)  Sales tax is administered by the State of Illinois in accordance with the State's fiscal year, July 1 through June 30.

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

SALES TAX BY CATEGORY
(In Thousands of Dollars)

Last Ten Years, July 1 to June 30(a)
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Village
Direct Cook

Year Rate County

2002 1.75% 8.50%

2003 1.75% 8.50%

2004 2.00% 8.50%

2005 2.00% 8.75%

2006 2.00% 8.75%

2007 2.00% 9.00%

2008 2.00% 10.00%

2009 2.00% 10.00%

2010 2.00% 9.50%

2011 2.00% 9.25%

Source:
Illinois Department of Revenue 

Last Ten Years

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS
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Business-
General Special IEPA Tax Type Activities Percentage

Fiscal Obligation Service  Loans Increment Water Total of Personal Per
Year Bonds Area Bonds Payable Financing Bonds Village Income (a) Capita (a)

2003 67,442,979$     1,222,865$       8,308,277$       -$                  3,307,117$       80,281,238$     4.7% 1,267$            

2004 63,407,035       1,111,224         7,306,523         -                    3,199,445         75,024,227       4.4% 1,184              

2005 58,640,712       994,973            6,271,194         -                    3,037,407         68,944,286       4.0% 1,088              

2006 53,970,541       888,130            5,201,154         -                    2,868,459         62,928,284       3.7% 993                 

2007 49,290,742       785,400            4,095,236         -                    2,686,498         56,857,876       3.3% 898                 

2008 30,882,475       2,609,238         2,952,222         12,175,000       2,512,524         51,131,459       3.0% 807                 

2009 27,431,618       3,444,867         1,837,204         12,175,000       2,323,382         47,212,071       2.8% 745                 

2010 49,216,511       4,506,123         1,039,316         12,175,000       2,103,489         69,040,439       4.0% 1,090              

2011 44,746,260       3,960,832         472,505            11,715,000       1,863,740         62,758,337       3.2% 969                 

2012 40,549,983       3,403,011         156,448            11,230,000       1,660,017         56,999,459       2.9% 880                 

Source:
The Village of Skokie's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

(a)  Additional demographic information is available in the schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on page 165.

Governmental Activities

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Percentage of
General Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Value (a) of Per
Year Bonds Total Property Capita (b)

2003 79,058,373$         79,058,373$         1.47% 1,248$              

2004 73,913,003           73,913,003           1.28% 1,167                

2005 67,949,313           67,949,313           1.00% 1,073                

2006 62,040,154           62,040,154           0.84% 979                   

2007 56,072,476           56,072,476           0.77% 885                   

2008 48,522,221           48,522,221           0.54% 766                   

2009 43,767,204           43,767,204           0.46% 691                   

2010 64,534,316           64,534,316           0.69% 1,019                

2011 58,797,505           58,797,505           0.68% 908                   

2012 44,604,281           44,604,281           0.58% 689                   

Note:

Source:
The Village of Skokie's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

(b) Population data can be found in the schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on 
page 165.

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Dollars in Thousands, Except per Capita)

Details regarding the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to financial statements.

(a) See schedule of Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property on page 155 for more 
property value information.
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Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping

Outstanding Applicable (a) Debt

Village of Skokie direct debt 53,596$           100.000% 53,596$           

Overlapping debt
Debt repaid with property taxes

School District 68 8,280               99.451% 8,235               
School District 69 14,330             81.809% 11,723             
School District 72 6,495               71.138% 4,620               
School District 73.5 1,719               99.997% 1,719               
School District 65 7,805               100.000% 7,805               
School District 73 53,048             98.240% 52,114             
School District 71 -                   2.625% -                   
School District 67 5,030               3.042% 153                  
Morton Grove School District 70 4,690               1.250% 59                    
Niles Township High School District 219 160,439           59.974% 96,222             
Evanston Township High School District 202 14,921             9.824% 1,466               
Oakton Community College 27,245             10.994% 2,995               

Other debt
Cook County 3,709,260        1.685% 62,501             
Cook County Forest Preserve District 94,885             1.685% 1,599               
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District 2,300,335        1.719% 39,543             
Skokie Park District 4,005               96.195% 3,853               
Glenview Park District 14,820             3.303% 490                  
Morton Grove Park District -                   0.485% -                   
Skokie Special Service Areas 3,403               100.000% 3,403               

Total overlapping debt 6,430,710        298,500           

Total direct and overlapping debt 6,484,306$      352,096$         

Sources:

Notes:
Overlappinggovernmentsare thosethat coincide,at least in part, with the geographicboundariesof the Village of
Skokie.This scheduleestimatesthe portion of the outstandingdebtof thoseoverlappinggovernmentsthat is borneby
the residentsandbusinessesof the Village. This processrecognizesthat,whenconsideringthe Village'sability to issue
and repaylong-termdebt, the entire debt burdenborneby the residentsand businessesshouldbe takeninto account.
However,this doesnot imply that everytaxpayeris a residentand,therefore,responsiblefor repayingthedebt,of each
overlapping government.

For debt repaidwith propertytaxes,the percentageof overlappingdebtapplicableis estimatedusingtaxableassessed
property values.Applicable percentageswere estimatedby determiningthe portion of anothergovernmentalunit's
taxable assessed value that is within the Village's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable assessed value.

Assessedvalue data usedto estimateapplicablepercentagesprovidedby the Cook County Assessor'sOffice. Debt
outstanding data provided by Cook County Tax Extension Office.

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

April 30, 2012

(Dollars in Thousands)

Governmental Unit
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To date the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities.

TheVillage is a homerule municipality. Article VII, Section6(k) of the1970Illinois Constitution
governs computation of the legal debt margin.

"The GeneralAssemblymay limit by law the amountandrequirereferendum
approvalof debt to be incurredby homerule municipalities,payableform ad
valorempropertytax receipts,only in excessof the following percentagesof
the assessedvalue of its taxableproperty...(2)if its populationis more than
25,000andlessthan500,000anaggregateof onepercent...indebtednesswhich
is outstandingon theeffectivedate(July 1, 1971)of this constitutionor which
is thereafterapprovedby referendum...shallnot be includedin the foregoing
amounts."

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

April 30, 2012
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Personal Per
Income Capita

(thousands Personal Unemployment
Year Population of dollars) Income Rate

2002 63,348 1,719,011$      27,136$           5.8%

2003 63,348 1,719,011        27,136             5.6%

2004 63,348 1,719,011        27,136             5.2%

2005 63,348 1,719,011        27,136             4.9%

2006 63,348 1,719,011        27,136             3.5%

2007 63,348 1,719,011        27,136             3.7%

2008 63,348 1,719,011        27,136             4.9%

2009 63,348 1,719,011        27,136             8.1%

2010 64,784 1,978,827        30,545             8.1%

2011 64,784 1,978,827        30,545             7.9%

Sources:
Population and per capita information provided by the U.S. Census Bureau
Unemployment data provided by Illinois Department of Employment Security (IDES)

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Calendar Years
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Percentage of Percentage of
Total Village Total Village

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

NorthShore University HealthSystem*** 2,410 1        8.00% 1,600             2 5.07%

FederalMogul 1,500 2        5.00% 1,700             1 5.39%

Macy's 934    3        3.00%

MPC 800    4        3.00%

Skokie Park District 628    5        2.00%

Nordstrom 548    6        2.00%

Niles Township High School District 219 545    7        2.00% 600                4 1.90%

Cook County Circuit Court 513    8        2.00%

Continental Electrical Construction 500    9        2.00%

Village of Skokie 475    10      2.00% 507                5 1.61%

Pharmacia Searle 1,300             3 4.12%

Klein Tools 450                6 1.43%

Rand McNally 367                7 1.16%

Topco 255                8 0.81%

Citation Corporation 240                9 0.76%

Tech Lightinh 238                10 0.75%

TOTAL 8,853         28.08% 7,257             23.55%

Source:
* Village employment survey
** Financial Advisor, 2003 Official Statement
*** Village employment survey, combined for all locations within the Village

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2003**2012*
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Function/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Executive services 33.00 33.00 34.50 34.50 35.00 35.00 37.00 39.00 37.00 37.10
Finance 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.00 14.00
Community development 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 19.00 17.00 16.40
Health 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.50 16.50 16.50 16.50 16.50 16.00

Total general government 84.50 84.50 86.00 86.00 87.00 87.00 89.00 90.00 85.50 83.50

PUBLIC SAFETY
Fire 120.00 122.00 122.00 122.00 122.00 122.00 122.00 122.00 120.00 117.50
Police 162.00 165.00 165.00 167.00 165.50 166.50 167.50 165.00 163.00 162.00

Total public safety 282.00 287.00 287.00 289.00 287.50 288.50 289.50 287.00 283.00 279.50

PUBLIC WORKS 91.25 91.25 91.25 91.25 91.75 91.75 91.75 87.75 87.75 87.25

WATER 20.25 20.25 20.25 20.25 20.25 20.25 20.25 20.25 20.25 20.25

TOTAL 478.00 483.00 484.50 486.50 486.50 487.50 490.50 485.00 476.50 470.50

Source:
Village budget

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT VILLAGE GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Last Ten Calendar Years
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Function/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Manager's Office

Charitable solicitation permits issued 20               17               17               16               17               13               14               14               18               15               
Total new hires 40               25               35               32               42               40               39               17               24               16               
Copies of NewSkokie distributed 392,000      392,000      393,000      395,000      395,000      395,000      395,000      250,000      250,000      250,000      
Freedom of Information Act requests 241             300             400             380             480             402             400             400             599             670             

Human Services
Requests for services 37,150        37,750        37,950        38,500        28,000        28,300        28,500        17,890        17,890        18,500        
Meals-On-Wheels meals delivered 10,031        11,876        12,439        13,485        10,302        9,300          9,500          9,375          9,375          6,000          
Total volunteer hours 25,000        26,774        28,829        10,920        18,000        16,097        16,500        5,300          5,300          5,500          

Corporation Counsel's Office
Ordinances recorded 82               103             87               80               68               107             81               85               72               56               
Parking ticket summons issued 1,995          2,212          2,470          3,000          2,883          2,508          1,553          -             -             -             

Finance Department
Vehicle licenses sold 41,471        41,870        40,903        42,030        42,995        43,550        44,048        44,540        43,598        43,800        
Purchase orders issued 4,300          4,175          4,292          4,300          4,031          1,957          3,800          3,900          3,609          3,600          
Parking tickets processed 23,500        23,100        17,682        21,028        24,400        25,500        23,956        26,500        17,367        21,900        

Community Development
Building permits 2,700          3,300          3,300          4,018          3,562          3,900          3,200          3,652          3,446          3,725          
Certificates of completion 400             650             650             257             318             400             400             598             598             620             
Inspections 4,400          5,950          8,000          9,200          8,841          6,990          6,910          6,650          6,504          7,555          

Health Department
Animal control contacts 9,000          10,967        10,247        10,822        11,345        10,635        11,000        11,000        9,877          11,000        
Child vision/hearing screenings 4,400          4,903          3,562          4,569          3,731          4,050          3,800          3,800          3,291          3,800          
Food service inspections 1,100          1,119          1,115          1,003          933             1,100          1,100          1,100          951             1,100          

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Function/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

PUBLIC SAFETY
Total EMS calls 4,871          4,927          5,172          5,120          4,936          4,913          5,268          5,300          4,968          4,900          
Total fire calls 2,420          2,263          2,078          2,356          2,849          2,970          2,589          2,750          3,052          3,000          
Fire prevention inspections 2,056          2,056          2,354          2,587          3,287          3,142          3,308          3,245          3,641          3,500          
Communications calls 7,295          7,190          7,271          7,231          7,785          7,883          7,525          8,000          8,020          8,100          
Reports processed 37,188        36,888        40,388        41,504        44,655        60,247        62,072        63,400        57,016        59,000        
Traffic accidents 4,058          3,901          3,788          3,775          3,893          4,284          3,585          3,625          3,147          3,200          

PUBLIC WORKS
Tons of refuse disposed of 21,175        20,525        20,575        20,640        19,575        19,500        19,075        17,200        17,300        17,300        
Curb miles of streets swept 17,000        18,425        18,050        18,500        17,150        20,100        16,000        16,000        17,127        17,000        
Miles of streets plowed 3,125          5,000          3,775          1,500          3,925          4,900          4,575          10,000        34,560        10,000        

Source:
Various Village records
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Function/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

FACILITIES
Village Hall 1              1              1              1              1              1              1               1              1              1              
Fire stations 3              3              3              3              3              3              3               3              3              3              
Police stations 1              1              1              1              1              1              1               1              1              1              
Public works facilities 1              1              1              1              1              1              1               1              1              1              

FIRE DEPARTMENT
Fire apparatus 11            10            10            10            10            10            10             10            10            10            
Mobile intensive care units (ambulances) 3              3              4              4              4              4              4               4              4              4              

POLICE DEPARTMENT
Squad cars 50            46            49            55            52            52            52             52            40            40            

PUBLIC WORKS
Refuse packers 7              7              7              10            10            10            10             10            7              7              
Miles of Skokie streets 146          146          146          146          146          146          146           146          146          146          

WATER UTILITY
Average daily water consumption (000's gals.) 10,425     9,782       9,108       9,770       9,302       9,439       8,101        7,725       8,468       8,389       
Water mains (miles) 177          177          177          177          177          177          177           177          177          177          
Sewer facilities 156          156          156          163          163          163          163           163          163          163          

Source:
Various Village records

VILLAGE OF SKOKIE, ILLINOIS

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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